Public Document Pack

COUNCIL MEETING
SUMMONS
Members of Fareham Borough Council are hereby summoned to attend a meeting of
the Council to be held in the Council Chamber, Civic Offices, Fareham, on
THURSDAY, 11 OCTOBER 2018, commencing at 6.00 pm.

The Mayor: Councillor Susan Bayford
The Deputy Mayor: Councillor Pamela Bryant
Councillor Keith Barton

Councillor Michael Ford, JP

Councillor Ian Bastable

Councillor Jim Forrest

Councillor Susan Bell

Councillor Tiffany Harper

Councillor Fred Birkett

Councillor Carolyn Heneghan

Councillor Jonathan Butts

Councillor Connie Hockley

Councillor Trevor Cartwright, MBE

Councillor Leslie Keeble

Councillor Louise Clubley

Councillor Gerry Kelly

Councillor Shaun Cunningham

Councillor Kay Mandry

Councillor Peter Davies

Councillor Simon Martin

Councillor Tom Davies

Councillor Sarah Pankhurst

Councillor Steve Dugan

Councillor Roger Price, JP

Councillor Tina Ellis

Councillor Katrina Trott

Councillor Jack Englefield

Councillor Nick Walker

Councillor Keith Evans

Councillor Seán Woodward

Councillor Geoff Fazackarley

Page 1

1.

Prayers
The meeting will commence with a short service of prayers.

2.

Apologies for Absence

3.

Minutes (Pages 5 - 14)
To confirm as a correct record the minutes of the Council Meeting held on 26 July
2018.

4.

Mayor's Announcements

5.

Executive Leader's Announcements

6.

Executive Members' Announcements

7.

Declarations of Interest
To receive any declarations of interest from members in accordance with Standing
Orders and the Council’s Code of Conduct.

8.

Presentation of Petitions
To receive any petitions presented by a member of the Council.
Note: any petition so presented will be dealt with in accordance with the Council’s
petition scheme.

9.

Deputations
To receive any deputations of which notice has been given.

10. Reports of the Executive
To receive, consider and answer questions on reports and recommendations of the
Executive. Minutes of the meetings of the Executive and a schedule of individual
Executive member decisions are appended.
(1)

Minutes of meeting Monday, 3 September 2018 of Executive (Pages 15 - 20)

(2)

Schedule of Individual Executive member and Officer Delegated Decisions
(Pages 21 - 22)

11. Reports of Other Committees
To receive the minutes of the following Committees and to consider and answer
questions on any reports and recommendations made.
(1)

Minutes of meeting Wednesday, 18 July 2018 of Planning Committee (Pages
23 - 30)

Page 2

(2)

Minutes of meeting Wednesday, 12 September 2018 of Planning Committee
(Pages 31 - 46)

(3)

Minutes of meeting Tuesday, 18 September 2018 of Licensing and Regulatory
Affairs Committee (Pages 47 - 50)

(4)

Minutes of meeting Monday, 23 July 2018 of Audit and Governance
Committee (Pages 51 - 56)

(5)

Minutes of meeting Monday, 17 September 2018 of Audit and Governance
Committee (Pages 57 - 60)

12. Questions under Standing Order 17.2
To answer questions pursuant to Standing Order 17.2 for this meeting.
13. Motions under Standing Order 15
Members will be informed, prior to the meeting, of any motion duly notified in
accordance with Standing Order 15 but received after print and dispatch of the
agenda.
14. Appointments to Committees
To make any changes in appointments to the seats on committees in accordance
with the wishes of political groups. Such appointments will take effect from 12
October 2018.
15. Review of Policy Development and Review Panels and Scrutiny Board
Meetings (Pages 61 - 82)
A report by the Head of Democratic Services.
16. Procurement and Contract Procedure Rules (Pages 83 - 114)
A report by the Head of Democratic Services.

P GRIMWOOD
Chief Executive Officer
www.fareham.gov.uk
03 October 2018

For further information please contact:
Democratic Services, Civic Offices, Fareham, PO16 7AZ
Tel:01329 236100
democraticservices@fareham.gov.uk

Page 3

Agenda Item 3

Minutes of the
Council
Date:

Thursday, 26 July 2018

Venue:

Council Chamber - Civic Offices

PRESENT:
Mrs S M Bayford
(Mayor)
Mrs P M Bryant
(Deputy Mayor)
Councillors:

K A Barton, I Bastable, Miss S M Bell, F Birkett, J E Butts,
T M Cartwright, MBE, Mrs L E Clubley, S Cunningham,
P J Davies, T Davies, S Dugan, Mrs T L Ellis, J M Englefield,
K D Evans, G Fazackarley, M J Ford, JP, J S Forrest,
Miss T G Harper, Mrs C L A Hockley, L Keeble, J G Kelly,
Mrs K Mandry, S D Martin, Ms S Pankhurst, R H Price, JP,
Mrs K K Trott, N J Walker and S D T Woodward

Page 5

Council

1.

26 July 2018

PRAYERS
The meeting was opened with Prayers led by Reverend Gavin Foster of St.
John’s Church, Locks Heath.

2.

APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE
Apologies for absence were received from Councillor Mrs C Heneghan.

3.

MINUTES
RESOLVED that the Mayor be authorised to sign as a correct record the
Minutes of the Special Meeting of the Council held on the 14 June 2018 and
the Council Meeting held on the 14 June 2018.

4.

MAYOR'S ANNOUNCEMENTS
The Mayor announced that the final tickets are now on sale for a visit to
Windsor Castle and St. George’s Chapel on Saturday 22 September. Tickets
are £40 and sales close this week. The cost includes coach travel to the
Castle and entrance fees.
On Sunday 30 September in Ferneham Hall, there will be a matinee concert
featuring The Royal Marines Association Concert Band and The Military Wives
Choir. This performance will commemorate the end of World War 1. Tickets
can be purchased from Ferneham Hall or online.
The Mayor gave her thanks to Councillor Mike Ford who recently completed a
charity bike ride from Lands’ End to John O’Groats in fifteen days.
The Mayor gave her congratulations to everyone involved in the Fareham in
Bloom garden visit that she attended on Sunday.
The Mayor announced that her next tea party will take place on Thursday 6
September where Matt Wakefield will give a talk on Fareham In Bloom. This
will start at 2.30pm in the Mayor’s Parlour and tickets are available at £4 each.

5.

EXECUTIVE LEADER'S ANNOUNCEMENTS
LIDL Planning Application Judicial Review:
The Executive Leader announced that the claim for Judicial Review against
the Council has been refused and an Award of Costs for £5,000 made in the
Council’s favour.
Daedalus Award:

Page 6

Council

26 July 2018

The Executive Leader announced that the Council has recently won two
awards at the South Coast Property Awards: Development of the Year and
Business Park Innovation of the Year.
The Development of the Year Award recognises new developments at
Faraday Business Park that match industry standards and add value to the
region.
The Award for Business Park Innovation of the Year recognises the role Solent
Airport at Daedalus plays in the region’s economy celebrating its achievement
to create a sustainable environment.
Since taking ownership of the airport in 2015, the Council has invested over
£30m in providing industry-leading office and workshop space within the
Fareham Innovation Centre as well as bespoke industrial units and 11 new
hangers for business and general aviation use, unique to the south coast.
The Mayor accepted these Awards from the Executive Leader.

Titchfield Park Naming Result:
The Executive Leader announced that 2535 residents had taken part in the
Titchfield Park naming consultation with Abbey Meadows being the clear
winner, having received 1857 votes. In second place was Meon Meadow with
472 votes, and third was Tannery Meadows with 206 votes.
Alternative names had been suggested which included those of a historical
nature relating to Titchfield Abbey, Henry V, Margaret of Anjou, William
Shakespeare and Peter Des Roche (Bishop of Winchester). Some other
popular names which had boosted publicity included Parky McParkface,
Abbey View Meadows and Meon View Meadows.
Some residents commented on the current pathways around the park, whether
dog owners would be encouraged to have dogs on leads near the play areas
and the need for more dog waste bins.

Rough Sleeping Conference and Fareham StreetAid:
The Executive Leader announced that the rough sleeping conference held
earlier in the month had been arranged by the Council to bring together key
agencies who work in partnership to provide help and support to rough
sleepers. The aim of the conference was to share information and identify
strategies that will further support the work of the agencies and to launch
‘Fareham StreetAid’ which is a new initiative through which joint
communications can be published.
The Executive Leader stated that a series of key messages will be developed
to support the work of all the agencies and help members of the public who
either feel intimidated by being asked for money by rough sleepers, or would
like to find a way to help, but are not sure of the best way to do this. The
primary aim of Fareham StreetAid is to help vulnerable people off the streets
rather than helping them to live on the streets.

Page 7

Council

26 July 2018

National Planning Policy Framework:
The Executive Leader announced that on the 24 July the finalised version of
the revised National Planning Policy Framework had been issued by the
Ministry of Housing, Communities and Local Government.
The Executive Leader explained that this is a vast suite of documents with alot
of information in it and, because of the complexities, he has asked officers to
prepare a full Members’ briefing to go through what the changes will mean for
Fareham once they are in a position to do so.
The Executive Leader outlined some headline statistics: namely what the
Council’s new housing requirement number will be, what the impact is on the
Council’s five-year housing land supply and, importantly, what the impact will
be on the Council’s draft Local Plan.
Turning first to numbers, the Executive Leader stated that under the previous
system, housing requirement was determined by Objectively Assessed Need
and the Council’s annual requirement was 420 dwellings per annum.
He explained that the new methodology is predominantly based on household
projections in an area for the next 10 years and this figure is then uplifted to
take account of the affordability relationship between house prices and local
salaries. Having made that calculation, Fareham’s new local housing need
will increase by 124 dwellings per annum – from 420 to 544 dwellings.
In considering how this affects the Council’s five-year housing land supply
(5YHLS), the Executive Leader explained that the Council was getting very
close to closing the gap on that and at the June Planning Committee, the
figure was 4.65 years.
He further explained that, when calculating a 5YHLS figure, the Council is
required to build in an additional 5% buffer, and take account of any past
shortfall, for the next five years, so the Council was working to an annual
number of 487 dwellings.
Under the new rules the Council will begin from the new figure of 544
dwellings per annum which, assuming a 5% buffer, increases to 571.
This means, for the time being, the Council’s new position on 5YHLS is now
back to between 3.5 and 4 years.
The Executive Leader stated that, unfortunately, this could all change again
when the Housing Delivery Test is introduced in November 2018.
The Housing Delivery Test is a fundamental change and something we all
need to understand.
The Executive Leader explained that whereas in the past the Council have
only needed to demonstrate how it will meet its future requirements using its
5YHLS, under the new rules, the Council will have to prove whether it meets
its new housing requirements over the previous three years. This means the
Council will effectively have to look backwards as well as forwards.

Page 8

Council

26 July 2018

He explained that if the Housing Delivery Test shows results below 95%, the
Council must prepare an action plan to show how delivery can be increased. If
it is below 85%, the Council would need to apply a 20% buffer rather than a
5% buffer to its 5YHLS requirement. This would effectively reduce its position
to between 3 and 3.5 years.
It is anticipated that the result of our Housing Delivery Test, which will be in
November 2018, will show that the Council delivery is less than 85%, hence it
will need to prepare both a Housing Delivery Action Plan and increase its
5YHLS buffer from 5% to 20%.
This 20% increase would take our 5YHLS to 653 per annum for the next five
years.
The Executive Leader explained that all of these changes will obviously also
have an impact on our Draft Local Plan.
He stated that as Members are aware, the Council has consulted on its Draft
Local Plan and usually the next stage would be a Publication Plan.
Explaining that the work the Council has done to date remains relevant, the
Executive Leader stated that clearly the housing numbers the Council included
are not now enough. The Council is looking at an additional 1500-2000 new
dwellings on top of those already put forward in its Draft Local Plan. This
means the Council will need to revise its Development Strategy and seek
additional sites to make up those numbers and consult on both.
The Executive Leader stated, as an aside, the new framework requires at least
10% of the total requirement, that’s approximately between 900 and1000
houses, to be on sites of no larger than one hectare, so this will also need to
be reflected in the Council’s development strategy.
Effectively this amounts to a whole new stage in the process which the Council
will need to implement before it can progress any further.
The Executive Leader stated that another area the Council will need to look at
is the new ‘Statement of Common Ground’.
He explained that, up until now, the Council has had a ‘duty to cooperate’ with
neighbouring authorities who are unable to meet their housing requirements.
Under the new guidance, where there is a possible cross-boundary impact on
for example housing need and the provision of infrastructure, there must be a
Statement of Common Ground between relevant authorities. Statements of
Common Ground should be agreed as soon as possible, certainly well before
the Council can submit its emerging Local Plan so this will be something else
that will need careful consideration.
The Executive Leader was pleased that support for Garden City Principles had
again been included.
The Executive Leader stated that it is very disappointing to see that at the
consultation stage the Council’s was being given the largest increase in
Page 9

Council

26 July 2018

housing numbers in Hampshire and that position appears to have worsened
today.
The Executive Leader stated that he is working with Suella Braverman MP to
meet the Secretary of State, James Brokenshire who has agreed to meet once
the Council has ascertained the effects on Fareham.
6.

EXECUTIVE MEMBERS' ANNOUNCEMENTS
Executive Member for Health and Public Protection
South Coast Property Awards:
The Executive Member for Health and Public Protection, in his role as
Chairman of the Daedalus Working Group, reiterated the words of the Leader
and wished to pass this congratulations to everyone involved in helping the
Council to win this Award.
QA Hospital:
The Executive Member for Health and Public Protection announced that he
had received a letter from Mark Cubbon, Chief Executive of QA Hospital,
informing him of their proposal to re-develop the Emergency Department,
(which dates back to 1979). Since then, demand for urgent care has grown.
At the Department in 2010, there were 240 patients per day; by 2017 this had
risen to 299 per day and now sits routinely at 324 patients per day, although
on busy days, the department sees up to almost 400 patients.
The proposal for re-development (which it is hoped would be operational by
February 2021) would deliver an innovative clinical model for the delivery of
urgent care. The redesigned service will provide a single point of access for
all adult emergencies and in doing so will deliver benefits to patients.
The project also aligns with their recent published five-year strategy "Working
Together" which they commit to addressing some of the organisation's
changes. The scheme will require significant capital investment and they
believe they have a strong case to secure the full funding. The first stage is to
submit their outline business case which is on track for early September.
The Chief Executive of the QA Hospital has promised to keep the Executive
Member for Health and Public Protection updated on this Project's progress
and he feels encouraged that this will make a huge difference in the future.

Access All Areas:
The Executive Member for Health and Public Protection announced that all
Members will be aware that Access All Areas started this week at Portchester,
and at Salterns with various activities provided. This carries on for the next
four weeks, ending on the 23 August. At present, 1000 youngsters have
signed up which is very encouraging as it gives them the opportunity to try
different experiences. A free bus service is also provided to all the venues.
The Executive Member for Health and Public Protection gave his thanks to the
Leisure and Community Manager and her team for putting on an excellent
programme.
Page 10

Council

7.

26 July 2018

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST
There were no Declarations of Interest made at this meeting.

8.

PRESENTATION OF PETITIONS
There were no petitions presented at this meeting.
(1)

Petition : Cashless Payment Parking Systems

The Mayor announced that a Petition had been received on the 11 April 2018
calling for the Council “to replace the cash payment parking machines with
cashless payment parking systems. We feel that this is a reasonable
expectation, given the prevalence of persistent passive aggressive begging
next to the current cash payment parking machines”. This Petition received
1810 signatures.
Councillor S D T Woodward proposed a Motion, as follows:
“I fully support the sentiment of this petition as it correctly identifies where
issues have arisen in recent months with the car park cash machines having
been targeted by groups and individuals carrying out begging activities. The
Council has recognised this problem and has instigated a number of initiatives
to tackle this problem. Most notably, an upgrade programme commenced
earlier this year to modernise the car park ticket machines by ensuring that
they can accept contactless and card payments as well as cash. It is
important to recognise that 80% of the income to the car park tickets machines
is still cash payments which suggests that the majority of people using the car
parks would not want to or be able to use a card only option.
The underlying problem of begging around Council car parks links to one of
the key priorities of the Council which is tackling rough sleeping.
In light of this, I therefore propose that the Council does not replace the cash
payment parking machines for card only at this time and that we continue to
monitor the situation with the aforementioned activities”.
Having duly been seconded by Councillor T Cartwright and following a debate,
the Motion was carried unanimously.
9.

DEPUTATIONS
There were no deputations given at this meeting.

10.

REPORTS OF THE EXECUTIVE
(1)

Minutes of meeting Monday, 9 July 2018 of Executive

Page 11

Council

26 July 2018

RESOLVED that the Minutes of the Executive meeting held on Monday, 9 July
2018 be received.
(2)
Schedule of Individual Executive Member and Officer Delegated
Decisions
RESOLVED that the Schedule of Individual Executive Member and Officer
Delegated Decisions be received.
11.

REPORT OF THE SCRUTINY BOARD
(1)

Minutes of meeting Thursday, 28 June 2018 of Scrutiny Board

RESOLVED that the Minutes of the Scrutiny Board held on Thursday, 28 June
2018 be received.
12.

REPORTS OF OTHER COMMITTEES
(1)

Minutes of meeting Wednesday, 23 May 2018 of Planning Committee

RESOLVED that the Minutes of the Planning Committee held on Wednesday,
23 May 2018 be received.
(2)
Minutes of meeting Wednesday, 20 June 2018 of Planning Committee
RESOLVED that the Minutes of the Planning Committee held on Wednesday,
20 June 2018 be received.
(3)
Minutes of meeting Tuesday, 19 June 2018 of Licensing and Regulatory
Affairs Committee
RESOLVED that the Minutes of the Licensing and Regulatory Affairs
Committee held on Tuesday, 19 June 2018 be received.
(4)
Minutes of meeting Monday, 25 June 2018 of Appeals Committee
RESOLVED that the Minutes of the Appeals Committee held on Monday, 25
June 2018 be received.
13.

QUESTIONS UNDER STANDING ORDER 17.2
There were no Questions submitted to this meeting.

14.

MOTIONS UNDER STANDING ORDER 15
There were no Motions made to this meeting.

15.

APPOINTMENTS TO COMMITTEES
There were no changes to the appointments to committees made.

16.

APPOINTMENTS TO OUTSIDE BODIES
(1)

Earl of Southampton Trust
Page 12

Council

26 July 2018

In considering this item, it was AGREED that Mrs Knight and Councillor Mrs C
L A Hockley be re-appointed on the Charity’s Board of Trustees for a further 4
year term of office when the current appointment ends in September 2018.
(2)
Nomination of a governor to the Corporation of Barton Peveril Sixth
Form College
Following nomination by Councillor S D T Woodward, and having been duly
seconded, it was AGREED that Councillor K D Evans be nominated to put
forward an expression of interest for the position of Governor to the
Corporation of Barton Peveril Sixth Form College.
(The meeting started at 6.00 pm
and ended at 6.50 pm).

Page 13

Agenda Item 10(1)

Minutes of the
Executive
(to be confirmed at the next meeting)
Date:

Monday, 3 September 2018

Venue:

Collingwood Room - Civic Offices

Present:
S D T Woodward, Policy and Resources (Executive Leader)
T M Cartwright, MBE, Health and Public Protection (Deputy
Executive Leader)
F Birkett, Housing
Miss S M Bell, Leisure and Community
K D Evans, Planning and Development
S D Martin, Streetscene
Also in attendance:
Mrs C L A Hockley, Chairman of Leisure & Community Policy, Development and
Review Panel, for item 12(1)
J S Forrest, for items 9(1) and 12(3)
Mrs K K Trott, for items 8(1) and 10(1)

Page 15

Executive

1.

3 September 2018

APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE
There were no apologies given for this meeting.

2.

MINUTES
RESOLVED that the minutes of the meeting of the Executive held on 09 July
2018 be confirmed and signed as a correct record.

3.

EXECUTIVE LEADER'S ANNOUNCEMENTS
There were no Leader’s Announcements given at this meeting.

4.

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST
There were no declarations of interest made at this meeting.

5.

PETITIONS
There were no petitions submitted at this meeting.

6.

DEPUTATIONS
The Executive received a deputation in relation to item 11(1) – Response to
Draft Titchfield Neighbourhood Plan, from Mr Nick Girdler, Chairman of The
Titchfield Village Trust.
The Executive also received a deputation in relation to item 12(1) – Locks
Heath Memorial Hall Progress Report, from Reverend Gavin Foster of the
church of St John the Baptist, Locks Heath.

7.

MINUTES / REFERENCES FROM OTHER COMMITTEES
Scrutiny Board – 28 June 2018
Minute 7 – Review of Policy Development and Review Panel and Scrutiny
Board Meetings.
The Board considered a report by the Head of Democratic Services which set
out details of the Vanguard review of the effectiveness of the current Policy
Development and Review Panels and the Scrutiny Board meetings and
proposed a new Committee structure as set out in Appendix B to the Report.
RESOLVED that the Scrutiny Board supports the proposals contained within
the report and endorses that the Executive recommends to Council that:
(a) the Policy Development and Review Panels be dissolved;
(b) a Scrutiny Panel be created for each of the 6 Executive portfolios;
(c) subject to (a) and (b) above, the current Scrutiny Board be dissolved;
Page 16

Executive

3 September 2018

(d) each Scrutiny Panel be scheduled to meet 4 times per municipal year,
with additional meetings created if necessary;
(e) subject to (d) above, the revised schedule of meetings for the remainder
of the municipal year 2018-19 be approved, as set out in Appendix A;
(f) the Deputation scheme be amended to allow members of the public to
apply to give a deputation on any subject to the relevant Scrutiny Panel;
(g) subject to (a) (b) and (c) above, a revised allocation of seats be
approved, as set out in Appendix C (with the nomination of councillors
to seats being presented to Council in October);
(h) subject to the agreement of the changes, an amendment to the current
Members’ Allowances Scheme be presented to Council for approval, as
set out in paragraph 58 of the report; and
(i) subject to the agreement of the changes, delegated authority be given
to the Council’s Monitoring Officer to review and amend the Constitution
to:
i.

create the new functions of the Scrutiny Panels;

ii.

amend the Call-In procedures to reflect the changes to
Portfolio Scrutiny Panels; and

iii.

to review and amend the Constitution with regard to the
Deputation Scheme.

This item is listed at Agenda item 12(4) for consideration by the Executive.

8.

HOUSING

(1)

Housing Revenue Account Borrowing Programme Funding Bid

At the invitation of the Executive Leader, Councillor Mrs K K Trott addressed
the Executive on this item.
RESOLVED that the Executive agrees to delegate authority to the Managing
Director of Fareham Housing to submit bids for additional borrowing of up to
£13million to the Ministry of Housing, Community and Local Government
under the Housing Revenue Account Borrowing Programme (2019/20,
2020/21 and 2021/22 by the deadline of 07 September 2018.

Page 17

Executive

9.

3 September 2018

STREETSCENE

(1)

Single Use Plastic Policy

At the invitation of the Executive Leader, Councillor J S Forrest addressed the
Executive on this item.
RESOLVED that the Executive approves:
(a) the Council’s single use plastic policy ‘the Push’ as set out in paragraph
20 of the report; and
(b) the Communications Plan to promote the policy.

10.

HEALTH AND PUBLIC PROTECTION

(1)

Air Quality - Outline Business Case and Consultation Proposals

At the invitation of the Executive Leader, Councillor Mrs K K Trott addressed
the Executive on this item.
RESOLVED that the Executive approves the proposed consultation on the
current list of Air Quality Improvement measures detailed in Appendix C.

11.

PLANNING AND DEVELOPMENT

(1)

Response to Draft Titchfield Neighbourhood Plan

The Executive received a deputation in respect of this item from Mr Nick
Girdler, Chairman of the Titchfield Village Trust.
RESOLVED that the Executive agrees the Council’s response to the Presubmission (Regulation 14) Titchfield Neighbourhood Plan.

(2)

Custom and Self Build Strategy and Delivery Plan

RESOLVED that the Executive approves the Self-Build and Custom House
Building Action Plan for implementation.

12.

POLICY AND RESOURCES

(1)

Locks Heath Memorial Hall Progress Report

The Executive received a deputation in respect of this item from Reverend
Gavin Foster of the church of St John the Baptist, Locks Heath.

Page 18

Executive

3 September 2018

At the invitation of the Executive Leader, Councillor Mrs C L A Hockley
addressed the Executive on this item.
RESOLVED that, having considered the business plan for Locks Heath
Memorial Hall proposed by St John’s Church, as appended to these minutes
the Executive agrees that:
(a) the previous decision made by the Executive to sell the site on the open
market should not be reconsidered but that the church of St John the
Baptist, Locks Heath be invited to submit its best and final offer for the
purchase of the site by 30 September; and
(b) that the land be sold under the direction of the Director of Finance and
Resources, following consultation with the Executive Member for Policy
and Resources.

(2)

Business Rate Retention Pilots 2019-20

RESOLVED that the Executive:
(a) agrees in principle to participate in the submission bid for Fareham to
be part of a Hampshire-wide 75% business rate retention pilot; and
(b) delegates the agreement of the final submission to the Leader and the
Director of Finance and Resources.

(3)

Daedalus Gate Guardian

At the invitation of the Executive Leader, Councillor J S Forrest addressed the
Executive on this item.
RESOLVED that the Executive agrees:
(a) to erect a large and distinctive piece of public art known as a ‘Gate
Guardian’ at Daedalus; and
(b) a budget of £100,000, to be paid by developer contributions from
National Grid.

(4)

Review of Policy Development and Review Panels and Scrutiny Board
Meetings

RESOLVED that the Executive recommends the proposals to Council for
decision, which have been considered and endorsed by the Scrutiny Board,
that:
(i) the Policy Development and Review Panels be dissolved;
(ii) a Scrutiny Panel be created for each of the 6 Executive
portfolios;

Page 19

Executive

3 September 2018
(iii) subject to (i) and (ii) above, the current Scrutiny Board be
dissolved;
(iv) each Scrutiny Panel be scheduled to meet 4 times per municipal
year, with additional meetings created if necessary;
(v) subject to (iv) above, the revised schedule of meetings for the
remainder of the municipal year 2018-19 be approved, as set out
in Appendix A;
(vi) the Deputation scheme be amended to allow members of the
public to apply to give a deputation on any subject to the relevant
Scrutiny Panel, in addition to Council or any Committee;
(vii) subject to (i), (ii) and (iii) above, a revised allocation of seats be
approved, as set out in Appendix C (with the nomination of
councillors to seats being presented to Council in October);
(viii) subject to the agreement of the changes, an amendment to the
current Members’ Allowances Scheme be presented to Council
for approval, as set out in paragraph 58 of the Executive briefing
paper; and
(ix) subject to the agreement of the changes, delegated authority be
given to the Council’s Monitoring Officer to review and amend the
Constitution to;
1) create the new functions of the Scrutiny Panels;
2) amend the Call-In procedures to reflect the changes to
Portfolio Scrutiny Panels;
3) to review and amend the Constitution with regard to the
Deputation Scheme; and
4) to make any other minor or ancillary changes arising required
to give effect to this report;

(The meeting started at 6.00 pm
and ended at 7.38 pm).

Page 20

Agenda Item 10(2)


SCHEDULE OF EXECUTIVE MEMBER
& OFFICER DELEGATED
DECISIONS

The following decisions have been made by individual Executive Members since those
reported at the meeting of Council on 26 July 2018:
Housing
Appointment of Employer’s Agent for Hampshire Rose and Bridge Road Housing
Development Sites
13 August 2018
(Decision 2018/19 – 2041)
RESOLVED that the appointment of Boulter Mossman as Employer’s Agent for the
Bridge Road and Hampshire Rose development sites be approved.

Leisure and Community
Community Fund Application – Fareham North West Community Association
20 September 2018
(Decision 2018/19 – 2052)
RESOLVED that the application for £1,880 from Fareham Borough Council’s Community
Fund, submitted by Fareham North West Community Association, be approved and that
the funding is only released following the receipt of satisfactory evidence that the safety
improvements identified in the August 2018 Health Check have been undertaken.
Community Fund Application – Little Terrors Play Group
20 September 2018
(Decision 2018/19 – 2053)
RESOLVED that the application for £4,394 from Fareham Borough Council’s Community
Fund, submitted by the Little Terrors Play Group, be approved.

Page 21

Policy and Resources
Water Testing and Monitoring Contract Extension 2018-20
06 August 2018
(Decision 2018/19 – 2042)
Resolved that the existing contract with Clearwater technology for the risk assessment,
water testing and monitoring of the Council’s assets is extended for two years in the sum
of £47,174.65.

Page 22

Agenda Item 11(1)

Minutes of the
Planning Committee
(to be confirmed at the next meeting)
Date:

Wednesday, 18 July 2018

Venue:

Collingwood Room - Civic Offices

PRESENT:
Councillor N J Walker (Chairman)
Councillor I Bastable (Vice-Chairman)
Councillors:

T M Cartwright, MBE, P J Davies, K D Evans, M J Ford, JP,
Mrs K Mandry, R H Price, JP and S Dugan (deputising for F
Birkett)

Also
Present:

Councillor Mrs P M Bryant (Items 6 (3) (4) & (5)) and Councillor
Mrs L E Clubley (Items 6 (3) (4) & (5))

Page 23

Planning Committee

1.

18 July 2018

APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE
An apology of absence was received from Councillor F Birkett.

2.

MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETING
RESOLVED that the minutes of the Planning Committee meeting held on 20
June 2018 be confirmed and signed as a correct record.

3.

CHAIRMAN'S ANNOUNCEMENTS
There were no Chairman’s announcements made at this meeting.

4.

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST
There were no declarations of interest made at this meeting.

5.

DEPUTATIONS
The Committee received a deputation from the following in respect of the
applications indicated and were thanked accordingly.

Name

Spokesperson
representing the
persons listed

Subject

Supporting
Minute
No/
or Opposing Application
the
No/Page No
Application

ZONE 1 –
2.30pm

Mrs L Cutts
(Agent)

Mr T Burton
(Agent)
Mr R Wyatt

Mr J Moir
Mr A Beadsmore

LAND TO THE REAR
OF SEPTEMBER
COTTAGE BROOK
AVENUE WARSASH –
FOUR DETACHED
DWELLINGS WITH
ASSOCIATED
GARAGES, PARKING
AND LANDSCAPING
FOLLOWING THE
DEMOLITION OF
EXISTING
INDUSTRIAL AN
STORAGE BUILDINGS
-Ditto-

Supporting

6 (1)
P/18/0376/FP
Pg 11

-Ditto-

-Ditto-

-Ditto-

Opposing

-Ditto-

ZONE 2 –
3.00pm
Page 24

Planning Committee

18 July 2018
LAND NORTH OF
FUNTLEY ROAD
FUNTLEY – OUTLINE
PLANNING
PERMISSION WITH
ALL MATTERS
RESERVED (EXPECT
FOR ACCESS), FOR
RESIDENTIAL
DEVELOPMENT OF
UP TO 27 DWELLINGS
(USE CLASS C3) WITH
ASSOCIATED
INFRASTRUCTURE,
MEANS OF ACCESS
AND DEMOLITION OF
AGRICULTURAL
BUILDING

Mr A Jackson

LAND TO SOUTH OF
FUNTLEY ROAD –
CHANGE OF USE OF
LAND FROM
EQUESTRIAN/PADDO
CK TO COMMUNITY
PARK FOLLOWINF
DEMOLTIO OF
EXITSING BUILDINGS
LAND TO THE SOUTH
OF FUNTLEY ROAD,
FUNTLEY –
FOLLOWING
DEMOLITION OF
EXISITING
BUILDINGS,
RESIDENTIAL
DEVELOPMENT OF
UP TO 55 DWELLINGS
(INCLUDING 3
CUSTOM-BUILD
HOMES) (USE CLASS
C3), COMMUNITY
BUILDING
INCORPORATING A
LOCAL SHOP 250
SQM (USE CLASSES
A1, A3, D1 & D2),
ACCESSES AND
ASSOCIATED
LANDSCAPING,
INFRASTRUCTURE
AND DEVELOPMENT
Page 25

Opposing

6 (3)
P/17/1135/OA
Pg 31
6 (4)
P/18/0066/CU
Pg 49
6 (5)
P/18/0067/OA
Pg 54

Planning Committee

18 July 2018
WORKS

Mr E Morrell
Mrs B
Clapperton
Mr D Ramirez
(Agent)

The Funtley
Village Society
The Fareham
Society

Mr A Munton

-Ditto-

-Ditto-

-Ditto-

-Ditto-

-Ditto-

-Ditto-

-Ditto-

Supporting

-Ditto-

-Ditto-

-Ditto-

-Ditto6 (4)
P/18/0066/CU

Mr P Deacon

ZONE 3 –
3.00pm
Item 7
Tree Preservation Order
745 – 20 and 31 Holly
Hill Lane, Sarisbury
Green
-Ditto-

Mr T Bennie
Mr J Tickner
6.

Opposing

Item 7
Pg 85

-Ditto-

-Ditto-

PLANNING
APPLICATIONS
AND
MISCELLANEOUS
INCLUDING AN UPDATE ON PLANNING APPEALS

MATTERS

The Committee noted a report by the Director of Planning and Regulation on
the development management matter applications and miscellaneous matters
including the information on Planning Appeals.
(1)

P/18/0376/FP - LAND TO THE REAR OF SEPTEMBER COTTAGE
BROOK AVENUE WARSASH

The Committee received the deputations referred to in Minute 5 above.
Upon being proposed and seconded, the officer recommendation to refuse
planning permission was voted on and CARRIED.
(Voting: 8 in favour; 0 against; 1 abstention)
RESOLVED that PLANNING PERMISSION be REFUSED.
Reasons for Refusal
The development would be contrary to Policies CS2, CS6, CS14, CS17 and
CS20 of the Adopted Fareham Borough Core Strategy 2011 and Policies
DSP1, DSP6 and DSP40 of the Adopted Local Plan Part 2: Development Sites
and Policies Plan, and the National Planning Policy Framework (particularly
paragraphs 14, 17 and 55) and is unacceptable in that:

Page 26

Planning Committee

18 July 2018

i) the provision of dwellings in this location would be contrary to adopted
local plan policies which seek to prevent residential development in
the countryside which does not require a countryside location.
Further, the development would not be sustainably located adjacent
to or well integrated with the neighbouring settlement.
ii) the introduction of dwellings in this location would fail to respond
positively to and be respectful of the key characteristics of the area,
particularly its predominately undeveloped nature, which would be
out of character with the prevailing pattern of development in the
area.
iii) in the absence of a legal agreement to secure such, the proposal fails
to provide adequate mitigation against the protection of reptiles on
the site with no off-site reptile translocation receptor site being
secured.
(2)

Report on Planning Compliance at Drift House, Brook Avenue

The Committee’s attention was drawn to the Update Report which contained
the following information:This report has been withdrawn from the agenda. A further report will be
presented to Members of the Planning Committee at a later date.
(3)

P/17/1135/OA - LAND NORTH OF FUNTLEY ROAD FUNTLEY

The Committee received the deputations referred to in Minute 5 above.
At the invitation of the Chairman, Councillor’s Mrs L Clubley and Mrs P M
Bryant addressed the Committee on this item.
Upon being proposed and seconded, the officer recommendation to grant
planning permission, subject to the conditions in the report, was voted on and
CARRIED.
(Voting: 8 in favour; 1 against)
RESOLVED that, subject to the conditions in the report, PLANNING
PERMISSION be granted.
(4)

P/18/0066/CU - LAND TO THE SOUTH OF FUNTLEY ROAD
FUNTLEY

The Committee received the deputations referred to in Minute 5 above.
At the invitation of the Chairman, Councillors Mrs L Clubley and Mrs P M
Bryant addressed the Committee on this item.
Upon being proposed and seconded the officer recommendation to grant
planning permission, subject to the conditions in the report, was voted on and
CARRIED.
(Voting: 8 in favour; 1 against)

Page 27

Planning Committee

18 July 2018

RESOLVED that, subject to the conditions in the report, PLANNING
PERMISSION be granted.
(5)

P/18/0067/OA - LAND TO THE SOUTH OF FUNTLEY ROAD
FUNTLEY

The Committee received the deputations referred to in Minute 5 above.
At the invitation of the Chairman, Councillors Mrs L Clubley and Mrs P M
Bryant addressed the Committee on this item.
The Committee’s attention was drawn to the Update Report which contained
the following information:The applicant has confirmed the level of financial contribution towards the
country park and community/shop building elements of the proposal which will
be secured through the Section 106 legal agreement.
The applicant has agreed to a financial contribution of £802,000 towards the
associated ongoing maintenance of the community park. This figure provided
sufficient funding for a period of approximately 30 years and is based on
costings provided by the Council’s Head of Streetscene within whose service
the responsibility for countryside park management lies.
The applicant’s proposal is that the community/shop building on the site would
have a maximum size of 250 sq m. The building could be used for a range of
users as set out in the application (Use Classes A1, A3, D1 & D2). This could
for example allow the building to be used entirely as a community use or as a
combination of a community use and shop. The precise location, size,
specification and type of community use facility required would be determined
by the applicant and the Council. Those details would be a subject of the
reserved matters application which would follow the grant of outline consent.
It is proposed to transfer 0.1 hectares of land within the site to the Council for
the building and associated car parking and landscaping. Funding for the
building would be provided on a pro-rata basis of £2,0000 per sq m. for the
community use element only. In the event the Council determined that
improvements or provision if additional community facilities elsewhere in
Funtely was more beneficial the applicant agrees to provide the same sum un
a pro-rata basis minus the floorspace of any remaining shop use on the
application site.
The heads of terms d) and k) listed in the Officer recommendation of the
original report are therefore amended to read as follows:
d) To secure provision of, laying out (including provision of capital equipment
required to establish the park and transfer of community park land to Fareham
Borough Council and a financial contribution of £802,000 towards the
associated ongoing maintenance costs of operating the community park;
k) To secure detail of the delivery of the community building, the transfer of
land 0.1 hectares in size on application site and funding on pro-rata basis of
£2,000 per sq. m of community use floorspace (to a maximum of £500,000) for
Page 28

Planning Committee

18 July 2018

provision of community/shop building and associated management
arrangements for community use element along with pedestrian and vehicular
access rights between the site of the community building and Funtley Road, or
at the request of local planning authority the same sum for the provision or
improvement of community facilities within Funtley calculated on a pro-rata
basis minus the floorspace of any remaining shop use on the application site.
Upon being proposed and seconded the officer recommendation to grant
planning permission, subject to the conditions in the report an amended
conditions d and k as set out in the Update Report, was voted on and
CARRIED.
(Voting: 8 in favour; 1 against)
RESOLVED that, subject to the conditions in the report and amended
conditions d and k as set out in the Update Report, PLANNING PERMISSION
be granted.
(6)

Request to Remove S52 Agreement Agricultural Tie, Greenwood,
Meon Road

Councillor Evans was not present for this item and therefore took no part in the
discussion or decision.
The Committee considered a report by the Director of Planning and Regulation
on a request to remove the S52 Agreement Agricultural Tie on Greenwood,
Meon Road.
RESOLVED that the Committee agree to discharge the S52 Agreement dated
9 March 1973 to remove the agricultural tie.
(7)

Planning Appeals

The Committee noted the information in the report.
(8)

UPDATE REPORT

The Update Report was tabled at the meeting and considered with the
relevant agenda item.
7.

TREE PRESERVATION ORDER 745 - 20 AND 31 HOLLY HILL LANE,
SARISBURY GREEN
The Committee received the deputations referred to in Minute 5 above.
Councillor Evans was not present for this item and took no part in the
discussion or the vote.
The Committee considered a report by the Director of Planning and Regulation
on a provisional TPO Order no. 745 to which objections had been received.
Upon being proposed and seconded, the officer recommendation to confirm
TPO 745 was voted on and CARRIED.
(Voting: 7 in favour; 1 against)
Page 29

Planning Committee

18 July 2018

RESOLVED that Tree Preservation Order No 745 is confirmed.

(The meeting started at 2.30 pm
and ended at 5.50 pm).

Page 30

Agenda Item 11(2)

Minutes of the
Planning Committee
(to be confirmed at the next meeting)
Date:

Wednesday, 12 September 2018

Venue:

Collingwood Room - Civic Offices

PRESENT:
Councillor N J Walker (Chairman)
Councillor I Bastable (Vice-Chairman)
Councillors:

F Birkett, T M Cartwright, MBE, P J Davies, K D Evans,
M J Ford, JP, Mrs K Mandry and Mrs K K Trott (deputising for R
H Price, JP)

Also
Present:

Councillor S D T Woodward (Items 8 (1) and (2))

Page 31

Planning Committee

1.

12 September 2018

APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE
An apology of absence was received from Councillor R H Price, JP.

2.

MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETING
RESOLVED that the minutes of the Planning Committee meeting held on 18
July 2018 be confirmed and signed as a correct record.

3.

CHAIRMAN'S ANNOUNCEMENTS
There were no Chairman’s announcements made at this meeting.

4.

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST
In accordance with Standing Orders and the Council’s Code of Conduct the
following declarations of interest were made at this meeting:
Councillor I Bastable declared a pecuniary interest in item 8 (2) – Land to the
East of 246 Botley Road as he lives next to the application site. He left the
room at the start of the meeting and took no part in the discussion or vote on
this item.
Councillor T M Cartwright declared a non-pecuniary interest in item 8 (3) –
Land to the South of Sovereign Crescent in that he has previously expressed
his views on this item. He left the room at the start of this item and took no part
in the discussion or vote to avoid any pre-determination issues.
Councillor M J Ford, JP declared a non-pecuniary interest in item 8 (3) – Land
to the South of Sovereign Crescent as he has discussed this application with
residents where he has discussed his opinion. He left the room at the start of
this item and took no part in the discussion or vote to avoid any predetermination issues.

5.

DEPUTATIONS
The Committee received a deputation from the following in respect of the
applications indicated and were thanked accordingly.

Name

Spokesperson
representing the
persons listed

Subject

Supporting
Minute
No/
or Opposing Application
the
No/Page No
Application

ZONE 1 –
2.30pm
Mr B Jezeph
(Agent)

LAND ADJACENT TO
60 SWANWICK LANE
SO31 7HF – OUTLINE
APPLICATION FOR UP
Page 32

Supporting

8 (1)
P/17/1530/OA
Pg 29

Planning Committee

12 September 2018

Mr A Short

TO 62 DWELLINGS
WITH ALL MATTERS
RESERVED EXCEPT
ACCESS
-Ditto-

Opposing

-Ditto-

Mr R Tutton

-Ditto-

-Ditto-

-Ditto-

Opposing

8 (2)
P/18/0347/OA
Pg 47

Ms G Neile

LAND TO THE EAST
OF 246 BOTLEY ROAD
BURRIDGE – OUTLINE
APPLICATION FOR
THE PROVISION IF UP
TO EIGHT DETACHED
5-BEDROOMED
DWELLINGS WIH
ACCESS ONTO
BOTLEY ROAD
-Ditto-

-Ditto-

-Ditto-

Ms N Beal

-Ditto-

-Ditto-

-Ditto-

Mr S Martin

-Ditto-

-Ditto-

-Ditto-

Mr M Sennitt
(Agent)

-Ditto-

Supporting

-Ditto-

LAND TO SOUTH
WEST OF SOVEREIGN
CRESCENT LOCKS
HEATH PO14 4LU –
CONSTRUCTIION OF
38 DWELLINGS WITH
ASSOCIATED ACCESS
FROM THE FLORINS
-Ditto-

Opposing

8 (3)
P/18/0484/FP
Pg 63

Supporting

-Ditto-

Opposing

8 (4)
P/18/0505/FP
Pg 82

Ms C Bell

Mr R Tutton

Ms K Stevens
(Agent)

Ms K Stevens

247 TITCHFIELD
ROAD CROFTON
HOUSE SITE – USE
OF LAND AS A
RESIDENTIAL
CARAVAN SITE FOR
FIVE GYPSY
FAMILIES, (10
CARVANS),
INCLUDING THE
LAYOUT OF
HARDSTANDING, FIVE
UTLITY BUILDINGS,
FENCING AND
INSTALLATION OF
PACKAGE SEWAGE
TREATMENT PLANT
Page 33

Planning Committee

Mr C
Slaughter
(Agent)

Ms K Stevens

Mr M Knappett
(Agent)

Ms A Hewitt

Mrs T Olive

Ms W Wyatt

12 September 2018
247 TITCHFIELD
ROAD STUBBINGTON
PO14 3EP – OUTLINE
PLANNING
APPLICATION FOR
THE CONSTRUCTION
OF THREE
DETATCHED
DWELLINGS WITH
ASSOCIATED
LANDSCAPING AND
PARKING
-Ditto-

Supporting

8 (5)
P/18/0620/OA
Pg 96

-Ditto-

-Ditto-

LAND AT HOOK PARK
ROAD WARSASH –
USE OF LAND AS A
SMALL RIDING
ESTABLISHMENT,
THE CARE &
WELFARE OF
HORSES, KEEPING
AND GRAZING OF
HORSES AND THE
SITING OF AN
ADDITIONAL
STORAGE
CONTAINER
-Ditto-

Supporting

8 (6)
P/18/0567/FP
Pg 111

-Ditto-

-Ditto-

14 SHERWOOD
GARDENS
SARISBURY GREEN
SO31 7SZ –
EXTENSION AND
CLADDINF TO THE
FRONT OF
PROPERTY AND
DORMER WINDOW
29, 33 & 35
HILLCROFT PO15 5ES
– FELL THREE OAKS
LOCATED IN THE
REAR GARDENS OF
29, 33 AND 35
HILLCROFT. THESE
TREES ARE
PROTECTED BY TPO
450

Opposing

8 (7)
P/18/0775/FP
Pg 122

Supporting

8 (8)
P/18/0687/TO
Pg 126

Supporting

8 (9)
P/18/0788/TO

ZONE 2 –
5.00pm
Ms L Foulger

27 THE COPSE
FAREHAM PO15 6EG –
Page 34

Planning Committee

12 September 2018
REMOVE OBE OAK
PROTECTED BY TOP
652

Pg 131

ZONE 3 –
5.00pm

6.

FIVE YEAR HOUSING LAND POSITION
The Committee considered a report by the Director of Planning and Regulation
on the Council’s Five Year Housing Land Supply position.
RESOLVED that the Committee note:-

7.

(i)

the content of the report and the current 5-Year Housing Land Supply
position;

(ii)

that the 5-Year Housing Land Supply position set out in the attached
report (which will be updated regularly as appropriate) is a material
consideration in the determination of planning applications for
residential development; and

(iii)

that the Government will be considering adjustments to the new
standard method used to calculate Local Housing Need, following
publication of the new household growth projections in September
2018.

HOW PROPOSALS FOR RESIDENTIAL DEVELOPMENT SHOULD BE
CONSIDERED IN THE CONTEXT OF THIS COUNCIL'S CURRENT 5 YEAR
HOUSING LAND SUPPLY POSITION
The Committee considered a report by the Director of Planning and Regulation
on how proposals for residential development should be considered in the
context of the Council’s current 5-Year Housing Land Supply position.
RESOLVED that the Committee note the content of the report.

8.

PLANNING
APPLICATIONS
AND
MISCELLANEOUS
INCLUDING AN UPDATE ON PLANNING APPEALS

MATTERS

The Committee noted a report by the Director of Planning and Regulation on
the development management matter applications and miscellaneous matters
including the information on Planning Appeals.

Page 35

Planning Committee

(1)

12 September 2018

P/17/1530/OA - LAND ADJACENT TO 60 SWANWICK LANE
SWANWICK SO31 7HF

The Committee received the deputations referred to in Minute 5 above.
At the invitation of the Chairman, Councillor S D Woodward addressed the
Committee on this item.
Upon being proposed and seconded the Officer Recommendation to refuse
planning permission was voted on and CARRIED.
(Voting: 9 in favour; 0 against)
RESOLVED that PLANNING PERMISSION be REFUSED.
Reasons for Refusal
The development would be contrary to Policies CS2, CS4, CS5, CS6, CS9,
CS14, CS17, CS18, CS20 and CS21 of the Adopted Fareham Borough Core
Strategy 2011 and Policies DSP6, DSP13, DSP14, DSP15 and DSP40 of the
adopted Local Plan Part 2: Development Sites and Policies Plan; and is
unacceptable in that:
(a) The provision of dwellings in this location would be contrary to adopted
local plan policies which seek to prevent additional residential
development in the countryside which does not require a countryside
location. Furthermore, the development would not be sustainably
located adjacent to or well integrated with neighbouring settlements;
(b) The density of the proposed development would fail to response
positively to and be respectful of the key characteristics of the area,
particularly its predominantly undeveloped nature, which would be out
of character with the prevailing pattern of development in the area;
(c) Had it not been for the overriding reasons for refusal the Council would
have sought to secure the on-site provision of affordable housing at a
level in accordance with the requirements of the local plan;
(d) In the absence of a legal agreement to secure such, the proposal would
fail to provide satisfactory mitigation of the ‘in combination’ effects that
the proposed increase in residential units on the site would cause
through increased recreational disturbance on the Solent Coastal
Special Protection Areas;
(e) In the absence of a legal agreement securing provision of open space
and facilities and their associated management and maintenance, the
recreational needs of residents of the proposed development would not
be met;
(f) In the absence of a legal agreement to secure such, the proposal fails
to mitigate against the adverse effects of the development on Swanwick
Lakes Nature Reserve; and

Page 36

Planning Committee

12 September 2018

(g) In the absence of a legal agreement securing the provision of funding
towards Education facilities, the educational needs of residents of the
proposed development would not be met.

Note for information:
Had it not been for the overriding reasons for refusal to the proposal, the Local
Planning Authority would have sought to address points c) – g) above by
inviting the applicant to enter into a legal agreement with Fareham Borough
Council under Section 106 of the Town & Country Planning Act 1990.
(2)

P/18/0347/OA - LAND TO THE EAST OF 246 BOTLEY ROAD
BURRIDGE SO31 1BL

The Committee received the deputations referred to in Minutes 5 above.
At the invitation of the Chairman, Councillor S D Woodward addressed the
Committee on this item.
Councillor I Bastable declared a pecuniary interest in this item as he lives next
to the application site. He left the room at the start of the meeting and took no
part in the discussion or vote on this item.
The Committee’s attention was drawn to the Update Report which contained
the following information: Additional Third Party Comment:
A further third party comment has been received by Hampshire Swifts,
supporting the recommendations of the ecologists on the application to
incorporate ‘swift bricks’ in the development. They would however like to see
them incorporated into all the proposed properties.
Amendment to the third paragraph on page 57 of the Committee Report to
state:
In balancing the objectives of adopted policy which seeks to restrict
development within the countryside alongside the shortage in housing supply,
the proposal would deliver an eight dwelling contribution towards the 5-year
housing land supply shortage in the Borough. Whilst only a relatively small
contribution, the layout and density of the proposal accords with the prevailing
low density character of the surrounding properties, for which a greater
number would be likely to be considered out of keeping. There is a clear
conflict with the development plan policy CS14 as this development is in the
countryside. Ordinarily, Officers would have found this to be the principal
policy such that the scheme would be refused. However, in light of the above
considerations, and where the scheme accords with the requirements of policy
DSP40, Officers consider more weight should be given to this policy than
CS14 such that, on balance, when considered against the development plan
as a whole, the scheme should be approved.
A motion to refuse planning permission was proposed and seconded, and was
voted on and CARRIED.
Page 37

Planning Committee

12 September 2018

(Voting: 6 in favour; 0 against; 2 abstention)
RESOLVED that PLANNING PERMISSION be REFUSED.
Reasons for Refusal:
The development would be contrary to Policies CS14 and CS17 of the
Adopted Fareham Borough Core Strategy 2011 and Policies CSp6, DSP15
and DSP40 of the Adopted Local Plan Part 2: Development Sites and Policies
Plan and is unacceptable in that:
a) the introduction of 8 dwellings in this countryside location would fail to
respond positively to and be respectful of the key characteristics of the
area,
particularly
its
predominantly
undeveloped
nature.
Notwithstanding the Council’s 5-year housing land supply position, the
provision of this small number of dwellings in this location, would not
outweigh the harm which would be caused to the character of the area;
b) in the absence of a legal agreement to secure such, the proposal would
fail to provide satisfactory mitigation of the ‘in combination’ effects that
the proposed increase in residential units on the site would cause
through increased recreational disturbance on the Solent Coastal
Special Protection Areas; and
c) in the absence of a legal agreement to secure such, the proposal would
fail to secure open space provision and associated maintenance to
ensure the appropriate level of green buffer is retained between
settlements.
(3)

P/18/0484/FP - LAND TO SOUTH OF SOVEREIGN CRESCENT
LOCKS HEATH PO14 4LU

The Committee received the deputations referred to in Minute 5 above.
Councillor T M Cartwright declared a non-pecuniary interest in this in that he
has previously expressed his views on this item. He left the room at the start of
this item and took no part in the discussion or vote to avoid any predetermination issues.
Councillor M J Ford, JP declared a non-pecuniary interest in this item as he
has discussed this application with residents where he has discussed his
opinion. He left the room at the start of this item and took no part in the
discussion or vote to avoid any pre-determination issues.
The Committee’s attention was drawn to the Update Report which contained
the following information:The Officer recommendation is revised so that condition 12 now reads:
“12) None of the development hereby approved shall be occupied until a plan
of the position, design, materials and type of boundary treatment to be erected
to all boundaries has been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local
Planning Authority and the approved boundary treatment in relation to the
dwelling being occupied has been fully implemented. It shall thereafter be
Page 38

Planning Committee

12 September 2018

retained at all times unless otherwise agreed in writing with the Local Planning
Authority.
If boundary hedge planting is proposed details shall be provided of planting
sizes, planting distances, density, and numbers and provisions for future
maintenance. Any plants which, within a period of five years from first planting,
are removed, die or, in the opinion of the Local Planning Authority, become
seriously damaged or defective, shall be replaced, within the next available
planting season, with others of the same species, size and number as
originally approved.
REASON: To protect the privacy of the occupiers of the neighbouring property,
to prevent overlooking, and to ensure that the development harmonises well
with its surroundings.”
The revision to the wording enables occupation of individual units provided the
boundary treatment across the entire site to be in place beforehand.
Condition 13 is revised to correct a typographical error and now reads:
13) No dwelling hereby approved shall be first occupied until the approved
parking and turning areas (where appropriate) for that property have been
constructed in accordance with the approved details made available for use.
These areas shall thereafter be kept available for the parking and turning of
vehicles at all times unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Local Planning
Authority following the submission of a planning application for that purpose.
REASON: In the interest of highway safety.”
Upon being proposed and seconded, the officer recommendation to grant
planning permission, subject to the conditions in the report and the amended
conditions 12 and 13 in the update report, was voted on and CARRIED.
(Voting: 3 in favour; 2 against; 2 abstention)
RESOLVED that, subject to the conditions in the report and the amended
conditions 12 and 13 in the Update Report, PLANNING PERMISSION be
granted.
(4)

P/18/0505/FP - 247 TITCHFIELD ROAD CROFTON HOUSE SITE
STUBBINGTON

The Committee received the deputation referred to in Minute 5 above.
The Committee’s attention was drawn to the Update Report which contained
the following information:Consultation Response from HCC Ecology:
A consultation response from Hampshire County Ecology has been received,
raising no objection to the proposal subject to the following conditions and
informative, which will be added to the decision:

Page 39

Planning Committee

12 September 2018

-

Prior to commencement, a badger survey of the site shall be carried out
by an experienced ecologist to ensure that no new setts have been
formed. In the event that a sett is discovered, a Method Statement for
its protection or closure under a Natural England licence shall be
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority.
REASON: To ensure the protection of badgers under the Protection of
Badger Act 1992.
-

If areas of suitable reptile habitat (e.g. hedge banks along the
boundaries and mound in the south-east) are to be affected by the
proposed works, prior to commencement, a Reptile Method Statement
shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning
Authority. Development shall subsequently proceed in accordance with
any such approved details.
REASON: To avoid impacts to protected species in accordance with Policy
DSP13 of the Fareham Local Plan Part 2.
-

Prior to the commencement, a Landscape and Biodiversity
Enhancement Strategy shall be submitted to and approved in writing by
the Local Planning Authority, to include appropriate detailed proposals
for the enhancement of the site in the form of provision of bat and bird
boxes. The Strategy should also include measures in the form of tree
and wildflower meadow planting along the eastern, southern and southwestern boundaries of the site to act as a buffer between the application
site and the boundary treelines.
REASON: To enhance biodiversity in accordance with National Planning
Policy Framework and the Natural Environment and Rural Communities
Act 2006.
INFORMATIVE:
Birds nests, when occupied or being built, receive legal protection under
the Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981 (as amended). It is highly advisable
to undertake clearance of potential bird nesting habitat (such as
outbuildings, trees, scrub etc). outside the bird nesting season, which is
generally seen as extending from March to the end of September, although
may extend longer depending on local conditions. If there is no alternative
to doing the work during this period then a thorough, examination of the
affected areas must be carried out before clearance starts. If occupied
nests are present then work must stop in that area, a suitable
(approximately 5m) stand-off maintained, and clearance can only
recommence once the nest becomes unoccupied of its own accord.
A motion was proposed to grant planning permission as per the officer
recommendation but was not seconded and therefore the motion was
declared lost.
A motion to refuse planning permission was proposed and seconded, and
was voted on and CARRIED.
(Voting: 7 in favour; 2 against)
RESOLVED that PLANNING PERMISSION be REFUSED.

Page 40

Planning Committee

12 September 2018

Reasons for Refusal:
The development would be contrary to Policies CS14, CS17, CS19 an
CS22 of the Adopted Fareham Borough Core Strategy 2011 and Policies
DSP2, DSP15 and DSP47 of the adopted Local Plan Part 2: Development
Sites and Policies Plan and in the absence of any objectively assessed
need for such a use in this location, it is unacceptable in that:
a) By virtue of the noise and disturbance generated by the use of the site,
the proposed development would have a harmful effect on the living
conditions of neighbours;
b) The development would harm the landscape character and appearance
of the countryside and fail to respect or respond positively to the key
characteristics of the surrounding area;
c) The development would adversely affect the integrity of the strategic
gap and the physical and visual separation of settlements; and
d) In the absence of a legal agreement to secure such, the proposal would
fail to provide satisfactory mitigation of the ‘in combination’ effects that
the proposed increase in residential units on the site would cause
through increased recreational disturbance on the Solent Coastal
Special Protection Areas.
(5)

P/18/0620/OA - 247 TITCHFIELD ROAD STUBBINGTON PO14 3EP

The Committee received the deputations referred to in Minute 5 above.
The Committee’s attention was drawn to the Update Report which contained
the following information:Consultation Response from HHC Ecology:
A consultation response from Hampshire County Ecology has been received,
raising no objection to the proposal subject to the following conditions and
informative, which will be added to the decision:
-

Prior to commencement, a badger survey of the site shall be carried out
by an experienced ecologist to ensure that no new setts have been
formed. In the event that a sett is discovered, a Method Statement for
its protection or closure under a Natural England licence shall be
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority.
REASON: To ensure the protection of badgers under the Protection of
Badger Act 1992.
-

If areas of suitable reptile habitat (e.g. hedge banks along the
boundaries and mound in the south-east) are to be affected by the
proposed works, prior to the commencement, a Reptile Method
Statement shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local
Planning Authority. Development shall subsequently proceed in
accordance with any such approved details.
REASON: To avoid impacts to protected species in accordance with Policy
DSP13 of the Fareham Local Plan Part 2.
Page 41

Planning Committee

12 September 2018

-

Prior to the commencement, a Landscape and Biodiversity
Enhancement Strategy shall be submitted to and approved in writing by
the Local Planning Authority, to include appropriate detailed proposals
for the enhancement of the site in the form of provision of bat and bird
boxes. The Strategy should also include measures in the form of tree
and wildflower meadow planting along the eastern, southern and southwestern boundaries of the site to act as a buffer between the application
site and the boundary treelines.
REASON: To enhance biodiversity in accordance with National Planning
Policy Framework and the Natural Environmentl and Rural Communities
Act 2006.
INFORMATIVE:
Birds nests, when occupied or being built, receive legal protection under
the Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981 (as amended). It is highly advisable
to undertake clearance of potential bird nesting habitat (such as
outbuildings, trees, scrubs etc.) outside the bird nesting season, which is
generally seen as extending from March to the end of September, although
may extend longer depending on local conditions. If there is no alternative
to doing the work during this period then a thorough, examination of the
affected areas must be carried out before clearance starts. If occupied
nests are present then work must stop in that area, a suitable
(approximately 5m) stand-off maintained, and clearance can only
recommence once the nest becomes unoccupied of its own accord.
Amendment to the fourth paragraph on page 106 of the Committee Report
to state:
In balancing the objectives of adopted policy which seeks to restrict
development within the countryside alongside the shortage in housing
supply, the proposal would deliver three eco-dwellings, a small contribution
to the 5-year housing land supply shortage in the Borough. Whilst only a
relatively small contribution, the layout and density of the proposal accords
with the prevailing low density character of the surrounding properties, for
which a greater number would be likely to be considered out of keeping.
There is a clear conflict with the development plan policy CS14 as this
development is in the countryside. Ordinarily, Officers would have found
this to be the principal policy such that the scheme would be refused.
However, in light of the above considerations, and where the scheme
accords with the requirements of policy DSP40, Officers consider more
weight should be given to this policy than CS14 such that, on balance,
when considered against the development plan as a whole, the scheme
should be approved.
A motion to refuse planning permission was proposed and seconded, and
voted on and CARRIED.
(Voting: 8 in favour; 1 against)
RESOLVED that PLANNING PERMISSION be REFUSED.
Reasons for Refusal:
Page 42

Planning Committee

12 September 2018

The development would be contrary to Policies CS14, CS17 and CS22 of the
Adopted Fareham Borough Core Strategy 2011 and Policies DSP6, DSP15
and DSP40 of the adopted Local Plan Part 2: Development Sited and Policies
Plan and is unacceptable in that:
a) the provision of dwellings in this location would be contrary to adopted
local plan policies which seek to prevent residential development in the
countryside which does not require a countryside location. Further, the
development would not be sustainably located adjacent to or well
integrated with the neighbouring settlement;
b) the development would harm the landscape character and appearance
of the countryside and fail to respect or respond positively to the key
characteristics of the surrounding area;
c) the development would adversely affect the integrity of the strategic gap
and the physical and visual separation of settlements; and
d) in the absence of a legal agreement to secure such, the proposal would
fail to provide satisfactory mitigation of the ‘in combination’ effects that
the proposed increase in residential units on the site would cause
through increased recreational disturbance on the Solent Coastal
Special Protection Areas.
(6)

P/18/0567/FP - LAND AT HOOK PARK ROAD WARSASH

The Committee received the deputations referred to in Minute 5 above.
The Committee’s attention was drawn to the Update Report which contained
the following information:Conditions 2 & 3 of the recommendation are revised as follows:
2) No customers shall be present at the site outside of the following times:
Mondays 0900 – 1600;
Tuesdays 0900 – 1800;
Wednesdays 0900 – 1600;
Thursdays 0900 – 1800;
Fridays 0900 – 1600;
Saturdays 0900 – 1600.
REASON: In order to protect the amenities of the area and the living
conditions of the occupiers of the neighbouring residential properties.
3) There shall be a maximum of 25 customers in total between the hours of
0900 – 1600 on any given day between Monday to Saturday. In addition, there
shall be a maximum of 10 customers in total between the hours of 1600 –
1800 on any given day on a Tuesday or a Thursday.
REASON: In order to protect the amenities of the area and the living
conditions of the occupiers of the neighbouring residential properties.

Page 43

Planning Committee

12 September 2018

Upon being proposed and seconded, the officer recommendation to grant
planning permission, subject to the conditions in the report and the amended
conditions 2 and 3 in the Update Report, was voted on and CARRIED.
(Voting: 7 in favour; 0 against; 2 abstention)
RESOLVED that subject to, the conditions in the report and the amended
conditions 2 and 3 in the Update Report, PLANNING PERMISSION be
granted.
(7)

P/18/0775/FP - 14 SHERWOOD GARDENS SARISBURY GREEN
SO31 7SZ

The Committee received the deputation referred to in Minute 5 above.
The Committee’s attention was drawn to the Update Report which contained
the following information:This application has been called to Committee by Councillor Martin due to
concerns over the neighbour impact to number 12 regarding loss of light.
Upon being proposed and seconded, the officer recommendation to grant
planning permission, subject to the conditions in the report, was voted on and
CARRIED.
(Voting: 9 in favour; 0 against)
RESOLVED that, subject to the conditions in the report, PLANNING
PERMISSION be granted.
(8)

P/18/0687/TO - 29, 33 & 35 HILLCROFT FAREHAM PO15 5ES

The Committee received the deputation referred to in Minute 5 above.
Upon being proposed and seconded the officer recommendation to refuse
consent was voted on and CARRIED.
(Voting: 8 in favour; 0 against; 1 abstention)
RESOLVED that CONSENT be REFUSED.
Reason for Refusal:
No evidence has been submitted to suggest the oak trees are unsafe or
otherwise unhealthy.
The Local Planning Authority considers the oak trees to be healthy, of good
shape and appearance, and of high amenity value. The proposed felling of the
oak trees would be harmful to the visual amenities and the character of the
area.
(9)

P/18/0788/TO - 27 THE COPSE FAREHAM PO15 6EG

The Committee received the deputation referred to in Minute 5 above.
Upon being proposed and seconded, the officer recommendation to refuse
consent was voted on and CARRIED.
Page 44

Planning Committee

12 September 2018

(Voting: 9 in favour; 0 against)
RESOLVED that CONSENT be REFUSED.
Reasons for Refusal:
No evidence has been submitted to suggest the oak tree is unsafe or
otherwise unhealthy.
The Local Planning Authority considers the oak tree to be healthy, of good
shape and appearance, and of high amenity value in this prominent location.
The proposed felling of the oak tree would be harmful to the visual amenities
and the character of the area.
(10)

P/18/0789/TO - 6 GILES CLOSE FAREHAM PO16 7JA

Councillor Davies was not present for this item and therefore took no part in
the discussion or vote on this item.
Upon being proposed and seconded, the officer recommendation to grant
consent to fell two oak trees, was voted on and CARRIED.
(Voting: 7 in favour; 0 against; 1 abstention)
RESOLVED that CONSENT be granted to fell two oak trees.
(11)

N/18/0006 - LAND NORTH OF RAVENSWOOD HOUSE HOSPITAL
KNOWLE ROAD WINCHESTER

Upon being proposed and seconded, the officer recommendation that:
(i)
No objection is raised in principle by Fareham Borough Council to the
development proposed north of Ravenswood House Hospital;
(ii)
Fareham Borough Council seeks assurances from the Highway
Authorities/Winchester City Council that the development north of
Ravenswood House Hospital would not impact upon the quantum of
development which could be constructed at Welborne before the
Junction 10 works are required to be completed.
(iii)
A financial contribution should be made towards the delivery of
infrastructure at Welborne.
Was voted on and CARRIED.
(Voting:9 in favour; 0 against)
RESOLVED that:
(i)
No objection is raised in principle by Fareham Borough Council to the
development proposed north of Ravenswood House Hospital;
(ii)
Fareham Borough Council seeks assurances from the Highway
Authorities/Winchester City Council that the development north of
Ravenswood House Hospital would not impact upon the quantum of
development which could be constructed at Welborne before the
Junction 10 works are required to be completed.
(iii)
A financial contribution should be made towards the delivery of
infrastructure at Welborne.

Page 45

Planning Committee

(12)

12 September 2018

P/18/0848/TC - 74 CASTLE STREET PORCHESTER PO16 9QG

Councillor Davies was not present for this item, and therefore took no part in
the discussions or decision on this item.
Upon being proposed and seconded, the officer recommendation to raise no
objection to the felling of one lime tree, was voted on and CARRIED.
(Voting: 8 in favour; 0 against)
RESOLVED that NO OBJECTION be raised to the felling of one lime tree.
9.

UPDATE REPORT
The Update Report was tabled at the meeting and considered with the
relevant agenda item.

10.

PLANNING APPEALS
The Committee noted the information in the report.
(The meeting started at 2.30 pm
and ended at 7.44 pm).

Page 46

Agenda Item 11(3)

Minutes of the
Licensing and Regulatory Affairs
Committee
(to be confirmed at the next meeting)
Date:

Tuesday, 18 September 2018

Venue:

Collingwood Room - Civic Offices

PRESENT:
Councillor

Mrs P M Bryant (Chairman)

Councillor

T M Cartwright, MBE (Vice-Chairman)

Councillors:

I Bastable, Mrs S M Bayford, Miss S M Bell, F Birkett, T Davies,
M J Ford, JP, J S Forrest, Mrs C Heneghan, L Keeble,
Mrs K Mandry and S Cunningham (deputising for R H Price, JP)

Also
Present:

Page 47

Licensing and Regulatory
Affairs Committee

1.

18 September 2018

APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE
Apologies for absence were received from Councillor R H Price, JP and
Councillor Ms S Pankhurst.

2.

MINUTES
RESOLVED that the minutes of the meeting of the Licensing and Regulatory
Affairs Committee held on 19 June 2018 be confirmed and signed as a correct
record.

3.

CHAIRMAN'S ANNOUNCEMENTS
The Chairman announced a change to the date of the Committee meeting
scheduled to take place on 29 January 2019. The meeting will now be held on
06 February 2019.

4.

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST
There were no declarations of interest made at this meeting.

5.

DEPUTATIONS
The Committee received a deputation from Mr J Miah, representing the
Fareham Hackney Carriage and Private Hire Association, in respect of item 6
of the agenda – Review of Hackney Carriage Fares.

6.

REVIEW OF HACKNEY CARRIAGE FARES
The Committee considered a report by the Head of Environmental Health
which provided Members with information regarding hackney carriage fares.
The Committee received a deputation on this item from Mr J Miah,
representing the Fareham Hackney Carriage and Private Hire Association.
Having considered the report and the responses received from individuals and
the Hackney Carriage and Private Hire Association in respect of changes to
the tariff, it was RESOLVED that the Committee recommends that the
Executive approves the following changes to the current tariffs:
(a) a minimum pull off charge of £2.60 for the first 180 metres (or part
thereof) with a charge of 20p for each succeeding 180 metres (or part
thereafter);
(b) a charge of 20p for each period of 55 seconds waiting time (or part
thereof); and
(c) that Easter Sunday from 0600 hours until 23.30 hours be charged at
Rate 2.

7.

LICENSING AND
PROGRAMME

REGULATORY
Page 48

AFFAIRS

COMMITTEE

WORK

Licensing and Regulatory
Affairs Committee

18 September 2018

The Committee considered a report by the Head of Environmental Health on
the Committee’s Work Programme for 2018/19.
As discussed at Item 3 of the agenda, the Committee noted that the date of
the meeting scheduled to take place on 29 January 2019 has been changed to
06 February 2019.
RESOLVED that the Licensing and Regulatory Affairs Committee:
(a) notes the progress on actions arising from the meeting of the
Committee held on 19 June 2018, as shown in Appendix A to the
report; and
(b) subject to the revision of the date of the meeting scheduled to take
place in January, approves the updated Work Programme for 2018/19
as attached as Appendix B to the report.
(The meeting started at 6.00 pm
and ended at 6.25 pm).

Page 49

Agenda Item 11(4)

Minutes of the
Audit and Governance Committee
(to be confirmed at the next meeting)
Date:

Monday, 23 July 2018

Venue:

Collingwood Room - Civic Offices

PRESENT:
Councillor

J E Butts (Chairman)

Councillors:

I Bastable (deputising for S D Martin), P J Davies, T Davies,
Mrs T L Ellis, Mrs C Heneghan and J G Kelly

Also
Present:

Page 51

Audit and
Committee

1.

Governance

23 July 2018

APOLOGIES
An apology of absence was received from Councillor S D Martin.

2.

MINUTES
RESOLVED that the minutes of the Audit and Governance Committee meeting
held on the 12 March 2018 be confirmed and signed as a correct record.

3.

CHAIRMAN'S ANNOUNCEMENTS
The Chairman made the following announcement –
Update on framework agreements (housing contracts)
Members may recall that following the Head of Finance and Audit’s Annual
report in July 2017, the Committee asked to receive an update on the actions
being taken to put together the framework agreements for spend with
contractors and suppliers used by Housing, Property and building Service,
which at the moment is breaching Fareham Borough Council’s Procurement
Rules.
The Managing Director of Fareham Housing provided the Committee with an
update, as follows Fareham Housing is seeking a single suitable contractor to carry out
refurbishment of Fareham Borough Council’s Housing stock in four categories
of work. These are voids, reactive replacement kitchens and bathrooms;
disabled adaptations; and other occasional reactive works.
The proposed Contract is to carry out the works using the National Housing
Federation (Version 6) Specification in conjunction with bespoke schedules of
rates and component rates.
The contract duration will be 5 years (3 + 1 + 1) with the anticipated start date
of February 2019 following the full procurement process. The estimated value
of the contract (full 5-year term) is £6.2m
UK / EU Public procurement legislation sets out the procedures by which the
Council carries out procurement exercises. The Council uses the South-East
Business Portal (SEBP) as its preferred method of sharing information about
forthcoming tendering / contract opportunities.
The specification and tender documentation has been prepared by the
Planned Maintenance section and the opportunity was advertised on the
SEBP on 6 July and runs for 30 days in accordance with EU procurement
legislation.
The tender will be run as a ‘restricted’ tender. The intention is to select up to 6
suppliers to receive a formal electronic invitation to tender. The short-list for
tender process is a desk top exercise based upon the quality of information
Page 52

Audit and
Committee

Governance

23 July 2018

provided by the Supplier in their Selection Questionnaire (SQ) response along
with independent financial analysis.
4.

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST AND DISCLOSURES OF ADVICE OR
DIRECTIONS
There were no declarations of interest made at this meeting.

5.

DEPUTATIONS
There were no deputations made at this meeting.

6.

STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS 2017/18
The Committee considered a report by the Director of Finance and Resources
on the Statement of Accounts 2017/18.
In order to answer a question put to Officers by Members of the Committee
during discussion on this item, a request was made for the meeting to go into
private session as defined in Paragraph 3 Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the Local
Government Act 1972.
RESOLVED that in accordance with the Local Government Act 1972 the
Public and Press were excluded, as the Committee considered that it is not in
the public interest to consider the matters in public on the grounds that they
will involve the disclosure of exempt information, as defined in Paragraph 3 of
Part 1 of the schedule 12A of the Local Government Act.
Following the answer being given to the satisfaction of the Chairman the
meeting was brought back into public session.
RESOLVED that the Committee approve the audited Statement of Accounts
for 2017/18, as attached in Appendix A to the report, for publication by the 31
July 2018, subject to the external auditors completing their outstanding
procedures and any further amendments being agreed by the Director of
Finance and Resources in consultation with the Chairman of the Audit and
Governance Committee.

7.

EXTERNAL AUDIT - AUDIT RESULTS REPORT
The Committee considered a report by the Director of Finance and Resources
on the External Auditors’ (Ernst & Young LLP) Annual Results.
The External Auditors addressed the Committee to deliver their report and
took this opportunity to congratulate Officers on meeting the new deadlines set
out in the Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015.
RESOLVED that: (a) the Committee notes the contents of the Annual Results Report
(Appendix A to the report); and

Page 53

Audit and
Committee

Governance

23 July 2018

(b) the Director of Finance and Resources and the Chairman of the Audit
and Governance Committee sign the Letter of Representation, subject
to the External Auditors completing their outstanding procedure and any
further amendments to the accounts being agreed by the Director of
Finance and Resources in consultation with the Chairman of the Audit
and Governance Committee.
8.

IPCO INSPECTION REPORT 2018
The Committee considered a report from the Head of Finance and Audit which
reviews the inspection report received from the Investigatory Powers
Commissioners Office (IPCO) 2018.
RESOLVED that the Committee notes: (a) the content of the report; and
(b) the action taken to provide up to date training to Officers.

9.

ANNUAL COUNTER FRAUD REPORT
The Committee considered the Annual Counter Fraud Report by the Head of
Finance and Audit.
RESOLVED that the Committee notes the contents of the report.

10.

INTERNAL AUDIT PROGRESS REPORT
The Committee considered the latest Internal Audit Progress report from the
Head of Finance and Audit.
RESOLVED that the Committee notes the contents of the report and the
findings arising from the Internal Audit work.

11.

HEAD OF AUDITS ANNUAL OPINION 2017/18
The Committee considered a report by the Head of Finance and Audit on the
Head of Audit’s Annual Opinion.
RESOLVED that the Committee notes the contents of the report as a source of
evidence for the 2017/18 Annual Governance Statement.

12.

ANNUAL GOVERNANCE STATEMENT 2017/18
The Committee considered a report by the Head of Finance and Audit on the
2017/18 Annual Government Statement.
RESOLVED that the Committee approve the Annual Governance Statement
for 2017/18, as attached in Appendix C of the report with no changes required.

13.

REVIEW OF WORK PROGRAMME

Page 54

Audit and
Committee

Governance

23 July 2018

The Committee considered a report by the Head of Finance and Audit
reviewing the Work Programme and Training Plan.
RESOLVED that the Committee approve the Work Programme for the rest of
the municipal year, as shown in Appendix A of the report.
14.

PROCUREMENT AND CONTRACT PROCEDURE RULES
The Committee considered a report from the Head of Democratic Service and
the Head of Finance and Audit on updates to the Council’s Contract Procedure
Rules and how these updates improve the Council’s procurement process.
RESOLVED that the Committee: (a) agrees the Procurement and Contract Procedure Rules policy
document, as attached as Appendix B to the report and recommends
the adoption of the policy to Council for approval; and
(b) recommends to Council that the budget expenditure authorisation limits
in Financial Regulation 4 are changed to match the limits for awarding
and signing contracts in the new Procurement and Contract
Procurement Rules, as outlined in Appendix A to the report.

15.

EXCLUSION OF PUBLIC AND PRESS
RESOLVED that in accordance with the Local Government Act 1972 the
Public and Press be excluded from the remainder of the meeting, as the
Committee considers that it is not in the public interest to consider the matters
in public on the grounds that they will involve the disclosure of exempt
information, as defined in Paragraph 3 of Part 1 of the schedule 12A of the
Local Government Act.

16.

UPDATE ON APPOINTMENT
CERTIFICATION WORK

OF

EXTERNAL

AUDITORS

FOR

The Committee considered a report from the Director of Finance and
Resources on the appointment of the External Auditors for the Council’s
certification work.
RESOLVED that the Committee notes the award of contract, by the Director of
Finance and Resources, for the annual housing benefit subsidy claims
certification work for three years with an option to extend for two years from
2018/19 to KPMG.
(The meeting started at 6.00 pm
and ended at 8.20 pm).

Page 55

Agenda Item 11(5)

Minutes of the
Audit and Governance Committee
(to be confirmed at the next meeting)
Date:

Monday, 17 September 2018

Venue:

Collingwood Room - Civic Offices

PRESENT:
Councillor

J E Butts (Chairman)

Councillor

S D Martin (Vice-Chairman)

Councillors:

P J Davies, T Davies, Mrs T L Ellis, Mrs C Heneghan and
J G Kelly

Also
Present:

Page 57

Audit and
Committee

1.

Governance

17 September 2018

APOLOGIES
There were no apologies of absence at this meeting.

2.

MINUTES
RESOLVED that the Minutes of the Audit and Governance Committee meeting
held on the 23 July 2018 be confirmed and signed as a correct record.

3.

CHAIRMAN'S ANNOUNCEMENTS
The Chairman announced that on behalf of the Audit and Governance
Committee Members he wanted to offer condolences to the two Members of
the Committee who have recently been bereaved.

4.

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST AND DISCLOSURES OF ADVICE OR
DIRECTIONS
There were no declarations of interest made at this meeting.

5.

DEPUTATIONS
There were no deputations made at this meeting.

6.

EXTERNAL AUDIT ANNUAL LETTER
The Committee considered a report by the Director of Finance and Resources
on the External Auditors (Ernst & Youngs LLP) Annual Audit Letter, which
summarises the findings from the 2017/18 audit.
RESOLVED that the Committee notes the contents of the report.

7.

ANNUAL OVERVIEW OF COMPLAINTS AGAINST THE COUNCIL
The Committee considered a report by the Director of Finance and Resources
on an annual overview of the complaints made to the Local Government and
Social Care Ombudsman, the Housing Ombudsman Service and any
complaints received in respect of breaches of the Code of Conduct for
Members.
RESOLVED that the Committee notes the contents of the report.

8.

RISK MANAGEMENT MONITORING REPORT
The Committee considered a six-monthly report from the Head of Finance and
Audit on the evidence that had been compiled as proof that the Risk
Management Policy which was approved by the Committee in March 2017, is
operating in practise.
RESOLVED that the Committee reviewed the report as a source of evidence
that the current Risk Management Policy is operating in practice.
Page 58

Audit and
Committee

9.

Governance

17 September 2018

INTERNAL AUDIT PROGRESS REPORT
The Committee considered a report by the Head of Finance and Audit on the
assurances arising from the latest Internal Audit work and updating Members
on the progress being made with the delivery of the audit plans.
Members expressed concern over the slow progress being made with the
audits in the 2018/19 plan. The Chairman requested that effort be made to
improve the advancement of this year’s plan by the 26 November 2018 Audit
and Governance Committee meeting.
RESOLVED that the Committee notes the progress and the findings arising
from the Internal Audit work.

10.

REVIEW OF WORK PROGRAMME 2018/19
The Committee considered a report by the Head of Finance and Audit on a
review of the Work Programme for 2018/19.
The Head of Finance and Audit addressed the Committee to confirm that
following the Committee’s approval at the 12 March 2018 meeting to bring the
Review of the Constitution as an annual report for Members, this will be added
to the 26 November 2018 meeting.
RESOLVED that with the addition of item – Review of the Constitution being
added to the 26 November 2018 meeting, the Committee approve the Work
Programme for 2018/19.
(The meeting started at 6.00 pm
and ended at 6.35 pm).

Page 59

Agenda Item 15

Report to Council
11 October 2018

Subject:

Review of Policy Development and Review Panels and Scrutiny
Board Meetings

Report of:

Head of Democratic Services

SUMMARY
This report provides the details of the Vanguard Intervention review of Committee
Services, focussing on the work of the Policy Development and Review Panels and
the Scrutiny Board. The Scrutiny Board and the Executive have been consulted on
the proposals for changes to the Council’s Committee Structure and no amendments
were made to the proposals.

Page 61

-2-

RECOMMENDATIONS
It is recommended that the Council:
(a)

agrees to dissolve the Policy Development and Review Panels;

(b)

agrees that a Scrutiny Panel for each of the 6 Executive Portfolios be
created;

(c)

agrees that, subject to (a) and (b) above, the current Scrutiny Board is
dissolved;

(d)

agrees that each Scrutiny Panel be scheduled to meet 4 times per
municipal year, with additional meetings created by the Scrutiny Panel if
necessary;

(e)

agrees that, subject to (d) above, the revised schedule of meetings for the
remainder of the municipal year 2018/19 be approved, as set out in
Appendix A;

(f)

approves the schedule of meetings for the municipal year 2019/20, as set
out in Appendix C and notes that the meetings of the Executive have been
set by the Executive Leader;

(g)

agrees that the deputation scheme be amended to allow members of the
public to apply to give a deputation on any subject, to the relevant Scrutiny
Panel;

(h)

agrees that, subject to (a), (b) and (c) above, a revised allocation of seats
for the remainder of the municipal year 2018/19 be approved, as set out in
Appendix D;

(i)

agrees the revised nominations of the political groups to seats on
committees, chairmen, vice chairmen, deputies and spokesmen, for the
remainder of the municipal year 2018/19, as set out at Appendix E (to be
tabled at the meeting);

(j)

agrees the changes to the Member’s Allowance Scheme, as set out from
paragraph 57 of the report; and

(k)

agrees that subject to approval of the above, delegated authority be given
to the Council’s Monitoring Officer to review and amend the Constitution to:
i.

create the new functions of the Scrutiny Panels;

ii.

amend the Call-In procedures to reflect the changes to Portfolio
Scrutiny Panels;

iii.

amend the Deputation Scheme;

iv.

amend the Members’ Allowances Handbook; and

Page 62

-3-

v.

make any other minor or ancillary changes arising required to give
effect to this report.

Page 63

INTRODUCTION
1. The purpose of this report is to outline the results of a review into the effectiveness of
the Council’s Policy Development and Review (PDR) Panel and the Scrutiny Board,
using the Vanguard methodology, and to put forward proposals for new arrangements.
LEGISLATIVE BACKGROUND & SCOPE
2. The Localism Act 2011 amended the Local Government Act 2000, allowing Councils to
choose to operate under either executive arrangements, a committee system or
arrangements prescribed by the Secretary of State. On 21 June 2012, the Council
resolved to retain its executive arrangements using the leader and cabinet executive
model. Meetings of the Executive are outside the scope of this report.
3. Where a local authority chooses to operate under executive arrangements, it must
provide for the appointment of one or more overview and scrutiny committees. As a
minimum, the Council must retain a scrutiny function to be responsible for holding the
Executive collectively and individually to account. At present, the Council meets this
requirement through the Scrutiny Board and 5 PDR Panels.
4. The Council is also required by the Licensing Act 2003 to appoint a committee to
undertake certain licensing functions and therefore the Licensing & Regulatory Affairs
Committee is outside of the scope of this report.
5. The Council is also required to appoint such committees as it considers necessary to
carry out the non-executive functions of the Council. The Planning Committee is
appointed to deal with the functions of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 and is
therefore outside of the scope of this report.
6. The Audit and Governance Committee is appointed to oversee and assess the
Council’s risk management, control and corporate governance arrangements and to
lead on the Council’s duties under chapter 7 of the Localism Act 2011 to review the
standards of ethics and probity of councillors. This committee is therefore required to
continue.
7. Finally, the Appeals Committee is appointed to determine appeals from Senior Officers
under the Council’s procedures relating to disciplinary action, salary grading and
unresolved grievances. This function is therefore required to continue.
ORIGINAL PURPOSE OF PDR PANELS
8. The PDR Panels were created in 2009 to focus on policy development work and to
support the Executive in researching options for improving and developing the
Council’s services. The intention was that after researching all the facts and discussing
possible options, the Panels would produce reports for consideration by the Executive.
9. It was expected that such an approach would ensure that those Councillors with seats
on the PDR Panels would be engaged in challenging and interesting work which would
support the work of the Executive in delivering the Council’s priorities.
10. The work of the Panels would also include monitoring progress on strategies and
action plans previously agreed by the Executive.

Page 64

-5-

PERFORMANCE / PURPOSE
11. The first stage in undertaking a Vanguard intervention is to undertake a review of the
performance of the Panels against “purpose”.
12. With this in mind, the work output of the PDR Panels was analysed for 2014/15,
2015/16 and 2016/17. During this period, each Panel was scheduled to meet 6 times
per municipal year, unless the meeting was cancelled with the agreement of the
Chairman. This occurred 9 times over the period.
13. Out of a total of 297 items discussed by the Panels, only 5.7% (17) resulted in
recommendations being made to the Executive for decision. There is an evident
decline in the number of items being recommended to the Executive year by year:




2014/15 – 102 items, 11 recommendations (10.7%);
2015/16 – 91 items, 4 recommendations (4.3%);
2016/17 – 104 items, 2 recommendations (1.9%)

14. Of these, just four items were in relation to policy decisions, all of which were from the
Planning & Development Panel.
15. Of the 81 meetings held over the three-year period, there was a relatively low level of
public engagement with 6 deputations and 2 petitions reviewed. 3 deputations were
made to the Leisure & Community Panel, 2 regarding play areas and 1 on Locks
Heath Football club. 2 deputations were made to the Public Protection Panel on taxi
licensing and animal welfare. 1 deputation was made to the Planning & Development
Panel on coastal defences. The petitions were regarding a skate park and Portchester
Village plans.
16. The average duration of the 81 panel meetings was 1 hour 20 minutes, with an upper
limit of 1 hour 55 minutes and a lower limit of 50 minutes. The lowest average
duration was Streetscene (1 hour 9 minutes) and the highest average was Planning
and Development (1 hour 26 minutes).
17. The Vanguard review also noted that if the purpose of the PDR Panels is to review
and develop policies, there would be a real danger of organisational “initiative
overload”. If each of the five Panels were to work on one policy per meeting cycle, this
would result in 30 policy reviews per year.
WHAT WE LEARNT / WHAT WE THOUGHT
18. An important part of the Vanguard methodology is to compare “what we think”
happens in the work flow against “what actually happened”. The following section
highlights some examples of this type of comparison using anonymous quotations
from Officers to exemplify the gap between assumptions and current reality.
19. When the PDR Panels were created, the intention was for the Panel to focus on policy
development work and to support the Executive in researching options for improving
and developing the Council’s services. The intention was to ensure that those
Councillors on the PDR Panels would be engaged in challenging and interesting work
which would support the work of the Executive in delivering the Council’s priorities.
20. In reality, nearly 90% of the items presented to PDR Panels are reviewing work which
has already been delivered by the relevant service. This leaves little time or focus on
Page 65

-6-

genuine policy development.
“The reports for review are ‘Noted’ by the Panel but then nothing goes forward
from there to improve the work being carried out or to make changes to it. It
therefore seems to be a waste of time preparing the report in the first place’.
21. There have recently been 7 Member Working Groups convened to deal with specific
corporate priorities as “task and finish” groups. (Daedalus MWG, Holly Hill Leisure
Centre MWG, Constitution Review MWG, Housing Strategy MWG, Local Plan Review
MWG, Strategic Air Quality MWG, Daedalus Anniversary Events MWG). It should be
noted that the original intention was that the PDR Panels would be asked to carry out
“task and finish” work.
“What hinders the development work is the formality of being dressed up as a
public meeting.”
22. The content of the PDR Panels is set up via the Annual Work Programme from which
each Panel’s agenda is created. The theory is that the content of the Work
Programme is contributed to by Members requesting items via their discussions at the
Panel meetings.
23. In reality, the creation and maintenance of the Work Programme for each PDR Panel
has become a key driving factor in deciding the content of the Panels. It is felt that
because there are 6 Panel meetings per year with the dates pre-set by Council in the
preceding municipal year, the task is to fill the meetings with work items. In Vanguard
terms, this is the “work driving behaviour”.
“In January of each year we ask what ideas have Members got for next year’s
Work Programme. Very little comes back from the Panel so it’s usually the
Officers who decide what goes forward.”
“We struggle to find enough work items to fill the Work Programme and
therefore an agenda”
24. A number of Panels receive progress reports on action plans as part of their
monitoring role. The action plans outline the steps taken to meet strategic objectives
but this monitoring can be duplicated as it is also a function of the Scrutiny Board.
25. There is a trend for some Panels to have external organisations addressing the Panel
to provide service updates. For example, the Clinical Commissioning Group addressed
the then Health & Housing Panel whilst the Leisure & Community Panel has received
presentations from SLM, Hampshire Cultural Trust, Y-Services, CAB and One
Community. Whilst this interaction is positive, this external review work could be
duplicated, as it is a function of the Scrutiny Board.
26. There has been very low public engagement across the PDR Panels with just 6
deputations delivered across a 3-year period. This may be adversely influenced by the
constitutional rule that Panels can only receive deputations on subjects which appear
as an agenda item.
“Mr x waited 9 months before having his say on taxi ranks – this shouldn’t have
taken so long but because it wasn’t on the agenda he couldn’t address the
meeting.”

Page 66

-7-

EFFORT / VALUE
27. When analysing work flow under a Vanguard review, a key step is to identify “value
demand” against the “purpose” and maximise the benefits. Equally, it is necessary to
identify waste work and remove it. Two key question posed are “How much resource is
used?” and “What value is created as a result?”
28. The estimated resource time for the preparation and delivery of each PDR Panel
meeting over one municipal year with six meetings is: Member 150 hrs, Service Officer
150 hrs, Committee Officer 80 hrs.
29. This appears disproportionate to the time spent at the meeting of an average of 1 hr
20 mins per attendee (total of 14 hrs 40 mins for the year).
30.

The estimated hours are split between the following tasks:







Preparation of the Work Programme
Reports and presentations
Chairman’s briefing
Attendance at the meeting
Post meeting administration
Portfolio Holder meeting

31. In assessing the output value of the Panel meetings, the question “what value is
created as a result” was posed against the following groups: Residents / customers



Nothing discernible
Confidence in the democratic process?

Officers



Creates unnecessary work
Seen as necessary evil

Members


May help Members become better informed

VANGUARD REVIEW SUMMARY
32. The conclusion of the Vanguard review was that the current system appears to be a
“find work/make work” style and approach, possibly caused by the inherent
assumptions created by a formal committee setting.
33. It is suggested that it is possible to create a better system, but this must be focussed
on a clearly defined purpose, followed by everyone involved working to that new
purpose.

Page 67

-8-

NEW DESIGN
34. In acknowledging that the current system of PDR Panels is not delivering against its
original purpose and, taking into account the multiple organisational changes which
have been implemented along with Vanguard method reviews, the following
recommendations are made. That:
(a) the current Policy Development and Review Panels are dissolved;
(b) a Scrutiny Panel is created for each of the 6 portfolios:







Health & Public Protection Scrutiny Panel
Housing Scrutiny Panel
Leisure & Community Scrutiny Panel
Planning & Development Scrutiny Panel
Policy and Resources Scrutiny Panel
Streetscene Scrutiny Panel

(c) subject to the above, the current Scrutiny Board is dissolved;
(d) each Scrutiny Panel is scheduled to meet 4 times per municipal year, with
additional meetings created if necessary. A revised schedule of meetings for
the remainder of the 2018/19 municipal year is attached as Appendix A;
(e) the minutes of the meetings of the six Scrutiny Panels will be received by
Council; and
(f) the Deputation Scheme is amended to allow members of the public to apply to
give a deputation on any subject to the relevant Scrutiny Panel.
35. In suggesting these changes, the following factors have been considered:
Policy Formulation
36. By creating themed Scrutiny Panels linked to Executive portfolios, it enables a shift in
focus to encourage involvement in Council Corporate Priorities and the Improvement
Actions identified in the Corporate Vision 2017-2023.
37. The Corporate Vision Improvement Actions can be assigned to the relevant Scrutiny
Panel to input to the work in delivery of the action. For example:
 Priority two – Protect and Enhance the Environment, the corporate action to
‘Increase Recycling Rates and Reduce the amount of household waste’ would be
assigned to the Streetscene Scrutiny Panel.
 Priority five – Leisure Opportunities for Health and Fun, the corporate action to
‘Develop long term plans aimed at bringing the Ashcroft Arts Centre and
Ferneham Hall together into a new and exciting single arts and entertainment
venue’ would be assigned to the Leisure & Community Scrutiny Panel.

Page 68

-9-

38. An example of the proposed Work Programme items for each Scrutiny Panel is set out
at Appendix B.
39. The reduction in the number of scheduled meetings per year to 4 would reduce the
resource time needed to prepare the work and should ensure a more focussed
approach on work output. The current over-reliance on work programmes to manage
the workload should become an enabling tool rather than being a drain on resources.
40. In order to ensure that all Scrutiny Panels have the ability to meet and discuss work
items at the most appropriate time, it is suggested that each Scrutiny Panel is able to
set additional meeting dates, or to move scheduled meeting dates as necessary, with
the relevant Lead Officer consulting with the Chairman to agree the dates. All
Members will be advised of meeting date changes via the Members’ Newsletter.
41. Ward Members would be more able to directly support local projects and initiatives by
ensuring that these are taken into account at the policy development stage.
Policy Scrutiny
42. The allocation of Corporate Strategy priority actions would not only enable Scrutiny
Panels to input to the work but also to hold the Executive Portfolio Holder and Senior
Officer to account in delivery of the action, thus strengthening the scrutiny function.
43. The addition of a specific Policy & Resources Scrutiny Panel provides additional focus
on the budget setting process and recognises the ongoing challenges of meeting
budget pressures. It would also support the Corporate Priority of ‘A Dynamic, Prudent
and Progressive Council’.
44. The existing functions of the Scrutiny Board and PDR Panels, as detailed in Part 2
Chapter 3 of the Constitution would continue to be in effect and would be covered by
each Scrutiny Panel in turn. However, the Monitoring Officer will review the functions
and update the constitution accordingly.
45. Any Executive decisions subjected to Call-In would be dealt with by the relevant
Scrutiny Panel based on the portfolio.
External Scrutiny
46. The Scrutiny Panels would continue to invite external organisations operating within
the Borough to attend meetings to present information and respond to questions as
part of the Scrutiny function.
47. It is suggested that the Deputation Scheme be amended to allow the Scrutiny Panels
to hear a deputation on any matter on which the Council has powers to act, thereby
removing the constraint which results in deputations only being allowed on agenda
items. This would increase the opportunity for public participation via the Scrutiny
Panels.
MEMBER WORKING GROUPS
48. Member Working Groups have proven to be an effective and efficient way to manage
short term projects as task and finish groups where the intention is that Members and
officers attend meetings to “roll up sleeves” and work together on specific items.

Page 69

- 10 -

49. The convening of the Member / Officer working groups, including the appointment of
Members to that group will continue to be agreed by the Executive with the relevant
Scrutiny Panel scrutinising their work.
50. The working groups are not formal meetings held in public and therefore are not
constrained by the legislation set by the Local Government Act for formal committees.
Similarly, there is no requirement for the working groups to be politically balanced.
However, a working group protocol could be drawn up to provide guidelines for the
conduct of the meetings.
51. As these are not formal decision-making meetings, there is no need for support from
the Democratic Services team, however Heads of Service would ensure that any
clerical tasks are carried out and a record of meetings and the attendance by
Members would be noted.
52. The output and findings of the Member Working Groups could be reported (in the
absence of the PDR Panels) via officer reports to the relevant Scrutiny Panel. All
reports recommending policy amendments or development would be referred to the
relevant Scrutiny Panel before being recommended to the Executive.
53. This approach will ensure that the policy development work carried out by the working
groups receives an appropriate amount of attention by a formal committee meeting
before the recommendations are passed to the Executive for decision or for onward
recommendation to Council.
COMMITTEE ALLOCATIONS
54. A recalculation of committee allocations based on the change from PDR Panels to
Scrutiny Panels is attached at Appendix D.
55. The calculation is based on the deletion of 9 Scrutiny Board seats, this being replaced
by 7 Policy & Resources Scrutiny Panel seats. The revised total number of seats is
reduced from 79 to 77.
56. The Council is asked to agree the revised nominations of the political groups to seats
on committees, chairmen, vice chairmen, deputies and spokesmen, for the remainder
of the municipal year 2018/19, as set out at Appendix E (to be tabled at the meeting).
ROLE OF OPPOSITION GROUPS
57. The change from Policy Development and Review Panels to Scrutiny Panels must not
stifle or supress the voice of opposition Members. The suggested changes instead
provide the prospect of more meaningful opposition through the more focussed
Scrutiny Panel meetings, including the introduction of a Policy and Resources Scrutiny
Panel.
MEMBERS’ ALLOWANCES
58. Following any decision to implement these changes to the committee structure, the
Members’ Allowances Scheme would require a slight amendment.
59. The following roles would therefore be recommended for review (shown with existing
or projected points):
Page 70

- 11 -

Chairman of Scrutiny Board
Vice-Chairman of Scrutiny Board
Chairman of PDR Panel
Vice-Chairman of PDR Panel
Chairman of Scrutiny Panel
Vice Chairman of Scrutiny Panel

REMOVE
140
15
125 x 5
15 x 5

NEW

125 x 6
15 x 6

60. It is recommended that the PDR Panels become Scrutiny Panels and therefore the
Special Responsibility Allowance for the Chairman and Vice-Chairman of Scrutiny
Panels should be the same as is currently awarded to PDR Panels.
61. If approved, there is a total deletion in SRA payments of 855 points and an addition of
840, resulting in a net reduction of 15 points (2018/19) value of 1 point = £57.87 and
therefore an estimated saving of £868.05.
RISK ASSESSMENT
62. There are no significant risk considerations in relation to this report.
63. The opportunity exists for the work of Panels to be more focussed around work
contributing to the Corporate Strategy and Priorities of Fareham Borough Council.
CONCLUSION
64. The Executive is invited to comment on the proposed recommendations following the
Vanguard Intervention in Committee Services. All comments will be put forward along
with the report to Council for a decision at its October meeting.

Appendices:
Appendix A: Schedule of Meetings for the remainder of the municipal year 2018/19
Appendix B: Proposed work items – Scrutiny Panels
Appendix C: Schedule of Meetings 2019/20
Appendix D: Allocation of Seats
Appendix E: Committee Nominations (to be tabled at the meeting)

Background Papers:

Reference Papers:
Minutes of the Scrutiny Board meeting held 28 June 2018
Minutes of the Executive meeting held 03 September 2018

Page 71

- 12 -

Contact:

For further information please contact Leigh Usher, ext 4553

Page 72

REVISED SCHEDULE OF MEETINGS 2018-19
May

Page 73

Mon
Tues
Wed
Thurs
Friday
Sat
Sun
Mon
Tues
Wed
Thurs
Friday
Sat
Sun
Mon
Tues
Wed
Thurs
Friday
Sat
Sun
Mon
Tues
Wed
Thurs
Friday
Sat
Sun
Mon
Tues
Wed
Thurs
Friday
Sat
Sun
Mon
Tues

1
2
3
4
5
6
7
8
9
10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25
26
27
28
29
30
31

June

July

Local Election

Bank Holiday

Anl COUNCIL

EXECUTIVE
P&D
SB

PC
H

Bank Holiday
H&PP

1
2
3
4
5
6
7
8
9
10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25
26
27
28
29
30

EXECUTIVE
PUSH JC
L&C
SS

COUNCIL

LRA
PC

App
PUSH O&S
SB

1
2
3
4
5
6
7
8
9
10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25
26
27
28
29
30
31

1
2
3
4
5
6
7
8
9
10
11
12
EXECUTIVE
13
H&PP
14
15
SS
16
17
18
19
20
P&D
21
PC
22
H
23
24
25
26
A&G
27
28
L&C;PUSH JC 29
COUNCIL
30
31

August

1
2
3
4
5
6
7
8
9
10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
PC
19
20
21
22
23
Bank holiday 24
25
26
27
28
29
30

APPENDIX A

September

EXECUTIVE
P&D
L&C
SS

H&PP
PC
SB

A&G
LRA
PUSH O&S
H

LRA, PUSH
JC

Weds
Thurs

October

1
2
3
4
5
6
7
8
9
10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25
26
27
28
29
30

EXECUTIVE
PC
COUNCIL

PUSH JC

November

1
2
3
4
5
6
7
8
9
10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25
26
27
28
29
30

December

SS

EXECUTIVE
P&D
L&C

H&PP
PC
H

A&G
LRA
P&R

1
2
3
4
5
6
7
8
9
10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25
26
27
28
29
30
31

EXECUTIVE
PUSH JC

PC
COUNCIL

PUSH O&S

Bank holiday
Bank holiday
Office Closed
Office Closed

January
1
2
3
4
5
6
7
8
9
10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25
26
27
28
29
30
31

February

March

April

Bank holiday

EXECUTIVE

PC
P&R

1
2
3
4
5
6
7
8
9
10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25
26
27
28

EXECUTIVE
PUSH JC
LRA

PC
Council

1
2
3
4
5
6
7
8
9
10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25
26
27
28
29
30
31

EXECUTIVE
H&PP
L&C
H

A&G
P&D
SS

PC

PUSH JC
LRA

Office closed

1
2
3
4
5
6
7
8
9
10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25
26
27
28
29
30

EXECUTIVE

PUSH O&S

COUNCIL
Bank holiday

Bank holiday
PC

31

May

KEY to
abbreviations:

June

July

August

September

A&G = Audit & Governance Committee (4)
LRA = Licensing and Regulatory Affairs Committee (6)
PC = Planning Committee (12)
App = Appeals Committee
PUSH JC = PUSH Joint Committee (6)
PUSH O&S = PUSH Overview and Scrutiny Committee (4)

Tues
Wed
Thurs
Friday
Sat
Sun
Mon
Tues
Wed
Thurs
Friday
Sat
Sun
Mon
Tues
Wed
Thurs
Friday
Sat
Sun
Mon
Tues
Wed
Thurs
Friday
Sat
Sun
Mon
Tues
Wed
Thurs
Friday
Sat
Sun
Mon
Tues
Weds
Thurs

October

November

December

January

February

March

L&C
= Leisure & Community Scrutiny Panel
H&PP = Health & Public Protection Scrutiny Panel
P&D = Planning & Development Scrutiny Panel
H
= Housing Scrutiny Panel
SS
= Streetscene Scrutiny Panel
P&R
= Policy & Resources Scrutiny Panel
School holidays / LGA conf (03-05 July) / Cons conf (01-04 Oct)

Note: Meetings of the Licensing Panel and of the Appeals Committee will be arranged as and when required.

April

12(4) - APPENDIX B

COMMITTEE STRUCTURE – SCRUTINY PANELS
PROPOSED WORK PROGRAMME ITEMS

Streetscene

Internal

Q & A session with Executive Member
Any Call In referred to Scrutiny Panel

Lead Officer:
Head of
Streetscene

External

Hi-Spec Cleaners
Project Integra
HCC Waste Disposal / Recycling Strategy
Fareham in Bloom
Allotment Associations
Sports Pitch User Groups

Corporate Priorities

Daedalus Open Space
Country Park at Titchfield
Recycling Rate
Holly Hill Cemetery

Planning &
Development
Lead Officer:
Head of
Planning
Strategy &
Regulation

Internal

Q & A Session with Executive Member
Any Call In referred to Scrutiny Panel

External

Buckland Development
Solent Coastal Partnership
PUSH
Transportation Companies (Rail /bus)

Corporate Priorities

Welborne
Local Plan
Coastal Scheme at Portchester
Regeneration of FarehamTown Centre
Redevelopment of Portchester District
Centre
Highways Major Schemes (J10, Newgate
Lane)

Page 75

Policy &
Resources
Lead Officer:
Director of
Finance and
Resources

Internal

Q & A session with Executive Member
Any Call In referred to Scrutiny Panel

External

Shopping Centre Management
Solent LEP
HCC Economic Development
Chamber of Commerce & Federation of
Small Businesses
Solent Airport Management
Oxford Innovation – Daedalus
Portchester Crematorium
Innovation Centre 2
Daedalus
A-level course provision within the Borough
Vanguard
Civic Offices redevelopment
Review of Council land and buildings
Balanced Budget (A Dynamic, Prudent and
Progressive Council)

Corporate Priorities

Leisure &
Community

Internal

Q & A session with Executive Member
Any Call In referred to Scrutiny Panel

Lead Officer:
Head of
Leisure &
Corporate
Services

External

Holly Hill and Fareham Leisure Centres
Hampshire Cultural Trust (Museum)
Citizens Advice Bureau
One Community
Y Services
Community Associations

Corporate Priorities

Future of Ferneham Hall
Improvement to facilities at Cams Alders

Page 76

Health &
Public
Protection

Internal

Q & A session with Executive Member
Any Call In referred to Scrutiny Panel

Lead Officer:
Head of
Environmental
Health

External

Police
Fire & Rescue Service
Clinical Commissioning Group
QA Hospital
Building Control Partnership
SCC Emergency Planning
Fareham Community Hospital

Corporate Priorities

Community Safety
Air Quality Review

Internal

Q & A session with Executive Member
Any Call In referred to Scrutiny Panel

External

Housing Associations
101- Two Saints
Private Landlords

Corporate Priorities

Housing Strategy
New build Council Housing
Lettings Policy

Housing
Lead Officer:
Head of
Housing &
Benefits

Page 77

DRAFT - SCHEDULE OF MEETINGS 2019/20
May
Mon
Tues
Wed
Thurs
Friday
Sat
Sun

Page 79

Mon
Tues
Wed
Thurs
Friday
Sat
Sun
Mon
Tues
Wed
Thurs
Friday
Sat
Sun
Mon
Tues
Wed
Thurs
Friday
Sat
Sun
Mon
Tues
Wed
Thurs
Friday
Sat
Sun
Mon
Tues
Weds
Thurs

June

1
2
3
4
5
6
7
8
9
10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25
26
27
28
29
30
31

1
2
3
4
5
6
7

1
2
Bank Holiday

Ann Council

EXECUTIVE

PC

Bank Holiday

May

KEY to
abbreviations:

3
4
5
6
7
8
9
10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25
26
27
28
29
30

EXECUTIVE
PUSH JC
L&C

P&R
Council

LRA
PC

P&D
PUSH O&S
H & PP

June

8
9
10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25
26
27
28
29
30
31

July
EXECUTIVE

August

1
2
3
4

H

PC
SS

A&G

Council

LRA
PUSH JC

July

5
6
7
8
9
10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25
26
27
28
29
30
31

September

October

1
2
3

1
2
3
4
5
6
7
8
9
10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
PC
18
19
20
21
22
Bank Holiday 23
24
25
26
27
28
29
30

August

November

EXECUTIVE

PUSH O&S

PC

A&G
LRA

September

A&G = Audit & Governance Committee (x4)
LRA = Licensing and Regulatory Affairs Committee (x6)
PC = Planning Committee (x12)
P&R = Policy & Resource Scrutiny Panel (x4)
Council = Council Meeting (x7)
PUSH JC = PUSH Joint Committee (6)
PUSH O&S = PUSH Overview and Scrutiny Committee (4)

1
2
3
4
5
6
7
8
9
10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25
26
27
28
29
30
31

L&C
P&R

EXECUTIVE

PUSH JC
PC
SS

P&D
Council

4
5
6
7
8
9
10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25
26
27
28
29
30

December

1
EXECUTIVE

H

PC

LRA

A&G

2
3
4
5
6
7
8
9
10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25
26
27
28
29
30
31

EXECUTIVE
PUSH JC

PC
Council

PUSH O&S

Bank holiday
Bank Holiday
Office Closed

January

1
2
3
4
5

Bank holiday

6
7
8
9
10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25
26
27
28
29
30
31

EXECUTIVE

February

1
2

L&C

P&R
H&PP

P&D
PC

LRA
SS

3
4
5
6
7
8
9
10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25
26
27
28
29

March

1
2
3
4
5

1
EXECUTIVE

H

PUSH JC
PC

Council

Office closed
Office closed

2
3
4
5
6
7
8
9
10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25
26
27
28
29
30
31

April

EXECUTIVE
P&R

L&C

A&G
PC
H&PP

PUSH JC
H

6
7
8
9
10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25
26
27
28
29
30

SS

EXECUTIVE
PUSH O&S
Bank holiday

Bank holiday

PC
Council

LRA

H&PP
October

November

December

January

February

L&C = Leisure & Community Scrutiny Panel (x4)
H&PP = Health & Public Protection Scrutiny Panel (x4)
P&D = Planning & Development Scrutiny Panel (x4)
H = Housing Scrutiny Panel (x4)
SS = Streetscene Scrutiny Panel (x4)
School holidays / LGA conf / Cons conf

Note: Meetings of the Licensing Panel and of the Appeals Committee will be arranged as and when required.

March

April

Tues
Wed
Thurs
Friday
Sat
Sun
Mon
Tues
Wed
Thurs
Friday
Sat
Sun
Mon
Tues
Wed
Thurs
Friday
Sat
Sun
Mon
Tues
Wed
Thurs
Friday
Sat
Sun
Mon
Tues
Wed
Thurs
Friday
Sat
Sun
Mon
Tues
Weds
Thurs

Allocation of Seats: Appendix D
Political Group Balance Calculation
Conservative

Liberal Democrat

Independent

24

5

2

77.42%

16.13%

4.97%

Seats to be allocated

Strict
Entitlement

Rounded

Strict
Entitlement

Rounded

Strict
Entitlement

Rounded

77

59.61

60

12.42

12

4.97

5

Policy &
Resources
Scrutiny Panel

7

5.42

5

1.13

1

0.45

0

Leisure &
Community
Scrutiny Panel

7

5.42

5

1.13

1

0.45

0

Planning &
Development
Scrutiny Panel

7

5.42

5

1.13

1

0.45

0

Health &
Public
Protection
Scrutiny Panel

7

5.42

5

1.13

1

0.45

0

Housing
Scrutiny Panel

7

5.42

5

1.13

1

0.45

0

Streetscene
Scrutiny Panel

7

5.42

5

1.13

1

0.45

0

Licensing &
Regulatory
Affairs

14

10.84

11

2.26

2

0.9

0

Planning
Committee

9

6.97

7

1.45

1

0.58

0

Appeals Panel

5

3.87

4

0.81

1

0.32

0

Audit & Gov

7

5.42

5

1.13

1

0.45

0

Notional
allocation

57

11

0

Adjustment
Required

+3

+1

+5

Notes:
(i)

(ii)

Under the calculation, the Conservative Group has notionally been
allocated 57 seats on committees which is 3 short of the strict
entitlement of 60 and therefore a manual adjustment of +3 is
required.
The Liberal Democrat Group has notionally been allocated 11 seats
on committees which is 1 short of the strict entitlement of 12 and
therefore a manual adjustment of +1 is required.

Page 81

Allocation of Seats: Appendix D
(iii)

(iv)

Whilst there is a UKIP councillor, a group cannot be formed by a
single member and so for the purposes of these calculations, the
UKIP councillor will be treated as an independent member.
Therefore, there are 2 independent councillors who do not
represent any political group. There is no strict entitlement
calculation applicable to an independent member however,
following the calculations and allocation of seats to political groups,
the Council must appoint the non-group members to any seats not
otherwise allocated. In doing this, the Council may allocate seats
from those committees requiring a balancing adjustment.

Page 82

Agenda Item 16

Report to Council
11 October 2018

Subject:

PROCUREMENT AND CONTRACT PROCEDURE RULES

Report of:

Head of Democratic Services and Head of Finance & Audit

SUMMARY
This report provides the details of the Vanguard Intervention review of Procurement,
focussing on buying activities in excess of £20,000, and the subsequent review of
Contract Procedure Rules (CPRs) and Financial Regulation 15 – Contracts and
Procurement Procedures (FR15).
Following a review by the Audit and Governance Committee, the Council is asked to
approve the proposed Procurement and Contract Procedure Rules policy document
which combines the previous CPRs and FR15 and incorporates the Procurement
Guiding Principles.

RECOMMENDATION

It is recommended that the Council:
(a) approves and adopts the Procurement and Contract Procedure Rules policy
document, as attached at Appendix B; and
(b) approves that the budget expenditure authorisation limits in Financial
Regulation 4 are changed to match the limits for awarding and signing
contracts in the new Procurement and Contract Procedure Rules, as outlined
in Appendix A.

Page 83

INTRODUCTION
1.

The Head of Democratic Services and the Procurement Manager gave a detailed
presentation to the Audit and Governance Committee on 27 November 2017 about the
work being carried out to improve the Council’s procurement process using the
Vanguard method. Draft buying principles were presented for comment and the
Committee was advised that this review would inform work to revise the Council’s
Contract Procedure Rules, and Financial Regulation 15.

2.

A further update report was presented to the Committee on 12 March 2018 at which the
agreement was given on the approach to the review of the governing procurement
rules.

3.

This report provides an update on the conclusion of the Vanguard review and
recommends the adoption of the new policy that had been drafted to meet the Buying
Principles.
PROCUREMENT PRINCIPLES

4.

An outcome of the Vanguard review was to create a set of Buying Principles which
would provide clear thinking for officers to check their reasons before beginning a
purchasing process.

5.

In designing the perfect system flow, it was identified that the key elements to take into
account should be that it:
 makes it easy for teams to access the supplies/goods/services they need to serve
their customers, and does not create undue delays or waste work; and
 demonstrates that we have achieved the best value for money out of taxpayers
funds, in the buying decisions we’ve made; and
 encourages (and certainly does not detract from), small businesses being part of the
Council’s supply chain.

6.

The aim is to avoid the focus being purely on cost which can often drive the
procurement process, cause unnecessary delays and restrict the route to market and
instead move towards a focus on supporting customer satisfaction and achieving the
best value for money (not necessarily the cheapest).

7.

The following Procurement Principles were agreed by the Audit and Governance
Committee at its meeting on 27 November:
1. Be clear about what you want and why you need it
2. Be able to justify your thinking to the person on the street who pays
council tax
3. Pull in the Experts early
4. Anything over OJEU limit = must go out tender (non-negotiable)
5. Get the best deal for the Council you can
6. Engage with local SMEs (principles of FSB Engagement Accord)
7. Buyer beware

Page 84

REVIEW OF EXISTING RULES
8.

Having agreed the thinking methodology via the Procurement Principles, the focus of
the review work shifted towards the review of the Contract Procedure Rules (CPRs),
Financial Regulation 15: Contract and Procurement Procedures and the Procurement
Sourcing and Threshold Table.

9.

The existing policies were reviewed and for each rule the new buying principles were
used as a guide to determine whether to keep, change or delete the rule along with
considering if a new rule needed to be created.

10. The Audit and Governance Committee endorsed this approach at its meeting on 12
March 2018 and work began to create a single document which would merge CPRs,
Financial Regulation 15 and the Procurement Threshold Table.
PROCUREMENT AND CONTRACT PROCEDURE RULES (PCPR)
11. The Procurement and Contract Procedure Rules policy document, as attached at
Appendix B, for approval.
12. The objective of the new policy is to bring about the following key changes:
 to encourage positive behaviour when purchasing;
 to have fewer thresholds and prescribed actions;
 to introduce added safeguards; and
 to reduce the need for waivers to be requested.
13. The single document is intended to provide guidance and options to officers undertaking
buying activities whilst ensuring compliance where necessary.
FINANCIAL REGULATION 4 – AUTHORISATION LIMITS
14. One of the aims of our review of Council policies is to keep any limits consistent and
easy to remember, and therefore less likely to be breached in error. It is therefore
recommended that the Council limits for authorising expenditure is changed to match
the limits for awarding and signing contracts proposed in the new Procurement and
Contract Procedure Rules.
15. The changes that would be needed in Financial Regulation 4 are summarised in
Appendix A.
RISK ASSESSMENT
16. The new Rules are moving towards encouraging positive behaviours rather than being
prescriptive in what buyers do for their level of spend. This does give employees more
flexibility in their procurement decisions but the Rules are underpinned with the
requirement that employees must be able to justify all spend in terms of achieving a
good deal for the customer and the Council. There are also added safeguards added to
the policy to increase transparency of the spending decisions that are being made.

Page 85

CONCLUSION
17. The Council is asked to approve the new Procurement and Contract Procedure Rules
policy document which combines the previous CPRs and FR15 and incorporates the
Procurement Guiding Principles.
18. The Council is asked to:
(a) approve and adopt the Procurement and Contract Procedure Rules policy document,
as attached at Appendix B; and
(b) approve that the budget expenditure authorisation limits in Financial Regulation 4 are
changed to match the limits for awarding and signing contracts in the new
Procurement and Contract Procedure Rules, as outlined in Appendix A.

Background Papers:
Draft versions of Procurement and Contract Procedure Rules policy document
Vanguard Review file
Reference Papers:
Fareham Borough Council Constitution and Current Contract Procedure Rules (2013)

Enquiries:
For further information on this report please contact Elaine Hammell (Ext 4344) or Leigh
Usher (Ext 4553)

Page 86

Appendix A
Proposed Changes to Financial Regulation 4 – Authorisation Limits

What can be authorised

Additional Rules

Page 87

Level 1

Level 2

Level 3

Chief
Executive
Officer or
Director

Head of
Service

Other staff
nominated by
their Head of
Service or
Director

£1,500,000

£75,000

£10,000

No limit

£100,000

£10,000

Any cheque over £50,000 must be countersigned
by an officer with Financial Management
authorisation.

Current
Limits

Budget Expenditure
Electronic authorisation of orders /
instructions on efinancials, Orchard or
Technology Forge
Manual authorisation of order forms, invoices
or payment vouchers/certificate

Proposed
Limits

Any non-cheque payment over £50,000 must be
additionally approved by an officer with Financial
Management authorisation, who is different from
the first authoriser.
Any payment over £1,000,000 must have been
approved by the Statutory Chief Finance Officer.
Any payment over £50,000 must be additionally
approved by an officer with Financial Management
authorisation, who is different from the first
authoriser.
Any payment over £1,000,000 must have been
approved by the Statutory Chief Finance Officer

Appendix B

Procurement and
Contract Procedure Rules

Version 1 – October 2018 (draft)

Page 89

Contents
1.

Introduction .................................................................................................... 3

2.

Compliance.................................................................................................... 3

3.

Overriding Principle ....................................................................................... 4

4.

General Rules................................................................................................ 4

5.

Significant Purchases .................................................................................... 6

6.

Understanding the Market and Possible Solutions ........................................ 7

7.

Routes to Market ........................................................................................... 7

8.

Preparation of Tender Documentation ........................................................... 8

9.

Advertising Opportunities .............................................................................. 8

10.

Submission and Opening of Tenders ............................................................ 8

11.

Tender Evaluation and Selection ................................................................... 9

12.

Approval and Award of Contract .................................................................... 9

13.

Type and Content of Legal Agreement ........................................................ 11

14.

Signing and/or Sealing Contracts and Agreements ..................................... 11

15.

Contract Records......................................................................................... 12

16.

Contract Management ................................................................................. 13

17.

Oversight of these Rules ............................................................................. 14

Appendices
A – Glossary
B – Procurement Guiding Principles
C – Route to Market Options
D – Guide to determine the appropriate type of legal agreement
E – EU Procurement Thresholds

Page | 2
Version 1

Page 90

1. Introduction
1.1 These Rules set out the approach that the Council uses for procurement and
entering into legal agreements. They are the Rules that the Council will follow
to adhere to its Procurement Guiding Principles as set out in Appendix B.
1.2 These Rules apply to the buying of goods, works and services, entering
into contracts and agreements and entering into income generating
arrangements. However, the generic term purchase will be used and
should be interpreted as meaning any of these things.
1.3 These Rules apply to all procurement decisions, regardless of the source of
funding.
1.4 A glossary of terms used in this document is attached as Appendix A. All
monetary values referred to in these Rules are the total purchase value with a
supplier not annual values, and exclude VAT unless otherwise stated.

2. Compliance
2.1 Every Member, employee of the Council and anyone acting on the Council’s
behalf must comply with these Rules.
2.2 Where work is carried out in partnership or collaboration then the Rules of the
‘lead’ authority should be followed, unless it is agreed by all parties that the
Rules of one of the partners prevails.
2.3 Failure to comply with these Rules is a breach of the Council’s Disciplinary
Code of Practice and will generally result in the application of the Council’s
disciplinary procedures.
2.4 These Rules can only be waived in exceptional circumstances and must be
agreed by the Statutory Chief Finance Officer in consultation with the
Monitoring Officer.
2.5 Approval is needed from only one of the Statutory Officers if the waiver would
protect the Council’s interests in an emergency, as defined in the glossary.
2.6 Any waiver approved should be included in the monthly newsletter to members.

Page | 3
Version 1

Page 91

3. Overriding Principle
The overriding procurement principle in these Rules is to think:

Would you do
this with your
own money?

4. General Rules
4.1 Comply with Legislation: Every purchase must be made in compliance with all
applicable legal requirements. Examples are:
 Public Contract Regulations 2015 (for OJEU requirements only)
 Construction (Design and Management) Regulations 2015
 The Concession Contracts Regulations 2016
 Anti-Bribery Act 2010
 Public Services (Social Value) Act 2012
4.2 Where there is a conflict between legislation and these Rules the legislation will
prevail.
4.3 Where the estimated purchase value exceeds the relevant EU public
procurement threshold, as set out in Appendix E, the procurement must be
compliant with the relevant legal requirements, as well as these Rules.
4.4 Avoid Bias: Employees must avoid any bias or perception of bias in their
buying decisions. In particular:


No purchase can be wholly awarded or managed by an employee or
member who has other interests in the supplier. Any interests must be
declared to the appropriate manager (employees) and Monitoring Officer
(members) who should act to avoid any conflicts of interest.



No gifts or hospitality, other than simple refreshments, can be accepted by
employees or members from any bidders to any contract being let by the
Council.

Page | 4
Version 1

Page 92

4.5 Know your Spend: Heads of Service must be aware of what suppliers their
service uses, the purpose of the purchase and the level of spend with them.
This information should be shared with the relevant buyers in the service to
ensure these Rules are being complied with.
4.6 Justify Your Spend: Buyers must act in the best interest of the tax payer and
the Council at all times when making purchases. They should therefore be able
to justify that:
a) There is a valid reason for making the purchase.
b) The purchase meets the needs of the customer/service and is fit for purpose.
c) The purchase is affordable and use of a budget for this purpose will be
approved.
d) The purchase meets the due diligence requirements of the Council. (see
below)
e) Value for money is achieved at the point of purchase.
f) There has been no artificial splitting of the purchase to avoid these Rules or
reduce the potential for fair and open competition.
g) Consideration is given to the whole life costs of the purchase.

4.7 Due Diligence: The due diligence requirements of the Council are that the
appropriate risks and mitigations have been considered, where applicable to
the purchase; such as:
a) Health and Safety arrangements
b) Right to work in the UK
c) Insurance cover (as stipulated in Financial Regulation 10)
d) Professional Accreditation
e) General Data Protection Regulation (GDPR) compliance
f) Safeguarding arrangements
g) Financial stability
h) Discretionary or mandatory exclusions (e.g. criminal records)

Page | 5
Version 1

Page 93

5. Significant Purchases
5.1 Early conversations must be held with the Council’s advisors when planning a
‘Significant Purchase. These are purchases which:
a) are a new and complex purchase for the service;
b) or, are organisationally sensitive;
c) or, are over the “Significant Value Threshold” which is defined as:
 any single purchase greater than or equal to £100k;
 or any continuous spend with a supplier expected to be greater than or
equal to £25k each year;
 the spend with the supplier all falls under one Head of Service.
The ‘Significant Purchase’ process can also be followed for any purchase
where additional support is needed.
5.2 The conversations should involve the buyer, a member of the Procurement
Team, the relevant finance business partner, and other relevant experts.
5.3 The outcomes of the conversations are to agree and record:
a) the justification of the purchase;
b) the sources to be used to fund the purchase and any approvals needed to
agree the use of funds for that purpose;
c) the appropriate route to market; (See Section 7)
d) due diligence requirements; (See Section 4.7)
e) the best form of tender documentation to be used, if relevant, to maximise
engagement with the market;
f) who will approve the award of the contract to a supplier and any key
decision notifications needed; (See Section 12)
g) the type of legal agreement needed, if any. (See Section 13)
5.4 Escalation: Where agreement cannot be reached the proposal should be
escalated and where necessary an officer panel will be convened, consisting of
2 of the following: Head of Paid Service, Section 151 Officer, Monitoring Officer,
Solicitor to the Council, Head of Finance and Audit, and Head of Democratic
Services.

Page | 6
Version 1

Page 94

6. Understanding the Market and Possible Solutions
6.1 Research should be carried out before making a purchase to ascertain:
a) The availability of what is required and/or other solutions available in the
market to achieve the required outcome.
b) Suppliers in the market place who can provide what is required.
The level of research carried out should be proportionate to the risks
associated with the purchase, such as the value, types of good and service,
and sensitivity.
6.2 Local Businesses and SMEs: The Council’s policy is to support local
businesses, where there is no detriment to the provision of Council services, as
a way of assisting the local economy recognised by the Public Services (Social
Value) Act 2012.
6.3 We also aim to support local Small and Medium-sized Enterprises where
possible and are signed up to the Federation of Small Businesses ‘Small
Business Engagement Accord’. The accord is a voluntary code of practice for
local authorities in the South East which seeks to encourage a more proactive
approach to engaging with local businesses.
6.4 We should therefore aim to invite at least one local SME to compete for a
purchase, where possible. See Appendix A for definitions of local and SME.

7. Routes to Market
7.1 The appropriate route to market to be used should be considered on a case by
case basis. Examples of different routes that could be considered are
summarised in Appendix C. This list is not exhaustive and alternatives may be
used where it is in the interests of the Council.
7.2 Negotiations: Negotiation with preferred suppliers is permitted as a route to
market and during the procurement process to get the best deal for the Council,
where relevant and when legally permissible (e.g. not allowed if OJEU
restricted or open procedure route being used).
7.3 Tendering: The route to market chosen should be one of the tender options if
any of the following apply:
a) we are seeking better knowledge of what is available in the market;
b) there are likely to be a few suppliers interested;
Page | 7
Version 1

Page 95

c) we have clearly specified what we are wishing to purchase;
d) we are looking for innovative solutions;
e) the purchase is organisationally sensitive or deemed high risk;
f)

it is believed that better value may be achieved through competition.

7.4 Assistance from the Procurement Team must be sought if using a tender route.

8. Preparation of Tender Documentation
8.1 Templates of appropriate documentation for use during tenders should be
maintained by the Procurement Team and adapted to maximise engagement
with the market.
8.2 The use of alternative tender documentation should be approved by the
Procurement Team.

9. Advertising Opportunities
9.1 Where the Council decides that the route to market needs to be advertised, the
opportunities should be advertised on the Council's Business Portal (the South
- East Business Portal) to seek expressions of interest from suitably qualified
suppliers.
9.2 Any opportunity which is advertised, where the purchase value is expected to
be £25,000 or more, must also be advertised on the Government’s Contract
Finder site.

10. Submission and Opening of Tenders
10.1 All invitations to tender must specify requirements for their submission. Such
requirements should include a time by which tenders must be received by the
Council. Any decisions to change the tender deadline must be agreed by the
Procurement Team and lead buyer and recorded and publicised.
10.2 All tenders should be managed through the South-East Business Portal
(SEBP). Support from the Procurement Team should be provided to assist
suppliers requesting help with electronic tendering.
10.3 All procurement submissions that have used the tender route should be
electronically unsealed by a member of Procurement Team after the tender

Page | 8
Version 1

Page 96

deadline date. The functionality of the South-East Business Portal will be used
to maintain the audit trail of the tender submissions and opening.

11. Tender Evaluation and Selection
11.1 An evaluation matrix should be prepared by the Procurement Team (including
the appropriate weightings against the Cost/Service/Quality elements) as part
of the initial tender documentation.
11.2 A completed evaluation/scoring matrix must be produced to support the
selection decision in a level of detail that will allow meaningful feedback to
bidders.

12. Approval and Award of Contract
12.1 Approval must be sought from the appropriate authoriser to award the contract
to the highest scoring tenderer, in accordance with the following table below:
Total Purchase Value

Authoriser

Up to £100,000
£100,001 to £250,000
£250,001 to £500,000
Over £500,000 within Council budget and policy
framework
Over £500,000

Head of Service
Director or Chief Executive Officer
Individual Executive Member
Executive Committee or Full Council
Full Council

12.2 Other Member Consultation: If spend involves one of the following,
purchasers should consult with the relevant Executive Portfolio holder before
awarding the contract:

Significant assistance to deliver a corporate priority.


Purchase relates to a regulatory responsibility e.g. gas servicing.



Organisationally or politically sensitive.



There are any potential officer conflicts of interest.



A possible adverse reaction in the market place leading to challenge.

12.3 All awards made over £250,000 constitute a key decision and should be
formally recorded and reported to the next meeting of the Executive or Full
Council.
12.4 Feedback to Tenderers: There should be communications with the
unsuccessful tenderers to explain why they were unsuccessful in a tender
exercise.
Page | 9
Version 1

Page 97

Page | 10
Version 1

Page 98

13. Type and Content of Legal Agreement
13.1 The type of legal agreement to be used for a purchase must be decided before
engaging with the market. This should include consideration of the following:
o

Document Type: What is the appropriate type of document to use for that
contract? (e.g. Purchase Order, JCT, call-off agreement, services agreement)

o

Contract versus Deed: Are the value or risks of the contract such that we want
the added protection of a deed?

13.2 The guide in Appendix D should be used to aid this consideration.

14. Signing and/or Sealing Contracts and Agreements
14.1 Signing an Agreement or Contract: Only Heads of Service and above can
sign a contract or agreement on behalf of the Council in accordance with the
following table:
Total Agreement Value
Up to £100,000
£100,001 or more

Signatory
Head of Service
Director or Chief Executive Officer

14.2 This Rule includes:
o
agreements which tie the Council into expenditure (e.g. maintenance);
o

agreements which tie the Council into a set of terms and conditions (e.g.
grant award);

o

contracts awarded through a tender process.

Purchase orders are excluded and can be authorised in accordance with
Financial Regulation 4.
14.3 Sealing a Deed: Any contract to be entered into as a deed should be sealed.
The officers authorised to sign the seal are identified in part 1 Chapter 13 of the
Constitution.
14.4 In exceptional circumstances where the seal is not available the deed can be
signed by 2 officers who are authorised to sign the seal.

Page | 11
Version 1

Page 99

15. Contract Records
15.1 Central Register: The Council must maintain a Central Register of all contracts
that it has entered into. The following types of contract are exempt from this
requirement and will be managed by lead services: Purchase Orders,
Employee Contracts, Tenancy Agreements and Tree Preservation Orders.
15.2 All original and signed copies of a contract, must be held in a secure location
for the term of the contract (including any agreed extension periods), plus the
statutory limitation period (6 years for contracts under hand, 12 years for
deeds) plus two years. They must be marked in a way that they can be crossreferenced back to the entry record on the Central Register.
15.3 Service Contract Records: Heads of Service must be aware of what contracts
their service has in place and where the documentation is held.
15.4 Heads of Service are responsible for ensuring that:
 summary details of any contract that has been entered into, that binds the
Council to the terms and conditions of the contract, have been entered on
the Central Register;
 the original signed/sealed contract and any subsequent signed/sealed
variations, have been stored in a secure location, and can be referenced
back to the Central Register;
 an electronic copy of the contract and any subsequent variations to the
contract that are entered into during its term are stored in their service’s filing
areas.
15.5 Right of Access to Documents: At any stage of a contract the Statutory Chief
Finance Officer or their representatives have the right to examine contract
records and be entitled to make all enquiries and receive such information and
explanation as they may require to confirm the accuracy of the records.
15.6 Non-employees employed to supervise and manage contracts on the Council’s
behalf should be required to provide documents relating to the contract for
inspection by the Council, when required. On completion of the contract all
such records should be transferred to an appropriate Council manager.
15.7 Document Retention: All tender and contract documentation should be
retained in accordance with the Council’s retention policy.

Page | 12
Version 1

Page 100

16. Contract Management
16.1 Contract Payments: The Council has signed up to the Prompt Payment Code.
The Prompt Payment Code signatories undertake to:


Pay suppliers on time within the terms agreed at the outset of the contract
and without changing payment terms retrospectively and without changing
the length of payment for smaller companies on unreasonable grounds.



Give clear guidance to suppliers by providing clear and easily accessible
guidance on payment procedures ensuring there is a system for dealing
with complaints and disputes and advising them promptly if there is any
reason why an invoice will not be paid to the agreed terms.



Encourage good practice by requesting lead suppliers to adopt the code
throughout their own supply chains.

16.2 Payment in Instalments and Retentions: Payments for works made in
instalments can only be made on an official certificate, the format of which has
been approved by the Statutory Chief Finance Officer. These should be issued
by the officer(s) named in the contract.
16.3 The certificate should clearly show the total contract sum, any variations,
cumulative total and payments and VAT paid to date, any retention sums kept
and amount due for payment on that instalment.
16.4 Variation Orders: Each variation to the original contract should be priced or
have an estimated price and a record kept. They should be confirmed and
authorised in writing by the contract manager or their deputy.
16.5 Where one or more variation orders cause the contract sum to increase by the
greater of 10% or £50,000 or more, they should be reported in the next report to
the Executive.
16.6 Contractor Claims: Financial claims from contractors in respect of matters not
clearly within the terms of an existing contract should be referred to Legal
Services for consideration of the Council's legal liability and to Financial Services
to assess the extent of any financial liability.
16.7 Extending Contracts: Contracts can only be extended in accordance with the
terms of the original contract, and generally should not be extended for more
than 2 consecutive occasions without reconsidering the market and assessing
the associated risks.

Page | 13
Version 1

Page 101

16.8 Extension to a Call-off Agreement: This is only possible when the terms and
conditions of the call-off provides for such an extension.

17. Oversight of these Rules
17.1 General: The Procurement Team and Finance Business Partners will provide
general oversight of adherence to these Rules and should log all Significant
Purchase opportunities that they have been notified of.
17.2 Transparency to Members: Any ‘Significant Purchase’ award that has been
made by officers should be published within a month to members.
17.3 Audits: In addition, testing by the internal audit team of a sample of suppliers
above and below the Significant Value Threshold will be carried out each
year.
17.4 Annual Report: An annual report should be presented to the Chief Executive’s
Management Team providing information on how these Rules have been
implemented in the preceding year.
17.5 This should include a summary of the different routes to market used for
significant purchases and the results of the audit testing.
17.6 This report will also serve as a source of assurance to the Chief Executive’s
Assurance Group and the Annual Governance Statement presented to the
Audit and Governance Committee.

Page | 14
Version 1

Page 102

APPENDIX A
GLOSSARY
BAFO
Best and Final Offer applies to the final of a multi stage (negotiated) procurement
process whereby the contracting authority is seeking each bidder’s best and final
offer on which the contract will be ultimately awarded.
Call-Off Agreements
A call-off agreement can be let from a framework either by direct award or through a
mini-competition process. It is an individual contract under a framework agreement
which benefits from being treated as if the full procedural steps prescribed by public
procurement law have already been fulfilled. The call-off contract may technically be
longer than four years and may extend beyond the expiry date of the framework itself
albeit that there would need to be clear justification for that.
Concession
See income generating arrangements.
Contracts
A contract relates to an agreement between at least two parties and consists of an
offer, acceptance and consideration creating reciprocal rights and obligations
between those parties. A purchase order is included in the definition of a contract.
Emergency

Major threat to life, property, security or the environment, or significant
damage to the running of any of the Authority’s functions or services.

Framework Agreement
A Framework Agreement is an agreement between one or more contracting
authorities and one or more potential suppliers for the supply of goods, services or
works which forms a pre-procured arrangement from which the contracting authority
can purchase those goods, services or works, either directly from a framework
supplier or following a mini-competition between the framework suppliers. The
maximum duration for a Framework Agreement is 4 years (except in certain
specified circumstances). Framework Agreements may be structured as single
supplier or multi-supplier agreements.
A Framework Agreement does not guarantee that contracting authorities will place
any specific £value or volume of business with the awarded framework suppliers.
However, where operational demand exists you are encouraged to use available
framework suppliers.

Page | 15
Version 1

Page 103

Framework Agreements are commonly used in the case of repetitive purchases
where the contracting authority knows it will have a requirement but does not know
the precise quantity or quantities which it will require. It therefore establishes a preexisting procured arrangement under which suppliers will, when the time comes, be
able to meet the Council’s needs.
Framework Agreements may be set up by Central Purchasing Bodies (e.g.
Government Procurement Service (GPS), Pro5 procurement organisations, regional
buying consortiums) to allow other contracting authorities to benefit from using them.
Goods / Supplies
These contracts relate to the purchase, hire, siting or installation of
goods, but not their maintenance.
For example: equipment, clothing, vehicles & spare parts, office stationery,
consumables, gas.

Income Generating Arrangements
There are a number of different types of contract relating to
arrangements where the contractor bears a significant part of
the risk of being rewarded for the works, goods and services
which it provides rather than involving an obligation on the
Council to pay the contractor for them. It could involve a right
for the Council to receive income in relation to or generated by the provision of the
works, goods and services provided by the contractor. Examples include:




Concession – Operator for Leisure Centre (management fees are received on a
regular basis to the Council from the operator having gone through a formal
procurement process)
Licence/Consent – Agreement to allow car washing franchises to operate from our
car parks. Whilst there is no obligation to perform the services the way that operators
are selected does fall within the procurement regime.

Local Businesses
Local Businesses are for the purpose of these Rules regarded as suppliers which
are geographically situated within the Solent Local Enterprise Partnership (LEP)
economic area comprising of the Isle of Wight, the two cities of Portsmouth and
Southampton, the M27 corridor and the Solent waterway.
Off-The-Shelf
Something readily available from a range of suppliers which is not designed or built
specifically for that purchaser’s own needs.

Public Contracts Regulations 2015

Page | 16
Version 1

Page 104

The Public Contracts Regulations 2015 (“PCR 2015”) implement in England and
Wales the latest EU Directive 2014/24/EU on public sector procurement and set out
the current rules governing public procurement activity. They came into force on 26
February 2015.
Purchase
Incudes all the following:


buying goods, works and services;



entering into contracts and agreements



entering into income generating arrangements.

Services
These contracts relate to the provision by a person or other
entity to provide services.
For example: consultancy agreements, provision of maintenance
services, provision of professional services, cleaning services.

Significant Purchase
These are purchases which:




are a new and complex purchase for the service;
or, are organisationally sensitive;
or, are over the “Significant Value Threshold”:

Significant Value Threshold (SVT)


any single purchase greater than or equal to £100k



or any continuous spend with a supplier expected to be greater than or equal to
£25k each year



the spend with the supplier all falls under one Head of Service.

SMEs
All the following are defined as Small and Medium-Sized Enterprises.




Micro Business = less than 9 employees & annual turnover under
£1.6m
Small Business = less than 49 employees & annual turnover under £8.3m
Medium Business = less than 249 employees & annual turnover under £41m

If both parts cannot be satisfied, the turnover value will prescribe if the supplier is a
micro, small or medium sized business

South East Business Portal (SEBP)
Page | 17
Version 1

Page 105

A joint procurement portal used by many Local Authorities in the south-east region to
advertise forthcoming contract opportunities and as a register of awarded contracts.
The portal is used to bring buyers and suppliers together electronically making it
easier to communicate opportunities for the local economies. https://sebp.duenorth.com/
Statutory Officer
Officers of the Council who are assigned in the Council’s Constitution to perform
these 3 statutory roles:
o
o
o

Section 151 Officer (Finance)
Monitoring Officer
Head of Paid Service (usually the Chief Executive Officer)

Tender
See table of options in Appendix C that fall under this definition in these Rules.
Total purchase value with a supplier
The total purchase value with a supplier would typically cover 4 years
spend with that supplier, excluding VAT.

Works
These contracts relate to construction, demolition,
building and civil engineering work and completion work
such as joinery, plastering and decoration. It includes
major repairs or complete refurbishment.
For example: building a sports pavilion, resurfacing a road,
repairing a roof, installing a heating system.

Page | 18
Version 1

Page 106

APPENDIX B
PROCUREMENT GUIDING PRINCIPLES
1.

Be clear about what you want and why you need it



How will the purchase benefit your customers?



Do you know what you want?



Do you know the market?



Is this the best deal for the Council?



Can you afford it within your budget?



Is this the best solution or is there another way to achieve the desired outcome?

2.

Be able to justify your thinking to the person on the street who pays council tax



Treat the spend as if it is your own money



Be ready to assist in evidencing the thinking/rationale for your approach



Comply with the Council's Anti-Bribery Policy - and know that you can rely upon it

3.

Pull in the Experts early



Have conversations with the Procurement Team and your Finance Business Partner to help agree
the right approach.



Ask for and accept critical friend challenge
o Be ready to answer - do you know your market, do you have the money, how does this spend
help your customer or internal stakeholder, is this spend the most economical way to achieve
that outcome

4.

Anything over OJEU limit = must go out tender (non-negotiable)



Heads of Service to authorise orders and invoices over this value



Need mechanism to tell people what the limit is when it changes - HoS and FBPs told - also SID
page with thresholds.



Advertise on Contracts Finder and other means

5.

Get the best deal for the Council you can



Not always the cheapest



What does good look like when you’re buying something?



Consider service implications and quality



Take into consideration whole life costs



This Council encourages negotiation with preferred suppliers, where relevant and when
permissible (not if OJEU restricted or open procedure routes)

Page | 19
Version 1

Page 107

6.

Engage with local SMEs (principles of FSB Engagement Accord)



Don’t close the door on SME businesses – help them to work with us



Meet the buyer events

7.

Buyer beware



Remember the risk is on the buyer



Checks on the supplier need to be carried out – supply vetting

Page | 20
Version 1

Page 108

Appendix C

Route to Market Options
This list is not exhaustive and alternatives may be used where it is in the interests of the Council

ROUTE

Examples of Use

Non-Tender Routes
Electronic Catalogues
In-house provision
Corporate Contracts

Direct approach

Contracts with
controlled entities

Use of pre-agreed arrangements the Council has with a supplier. Examples include
stationery & protective clothing online catalogues for purchasing goods via virtual
credit card arrangements.
Use of other parts of the Council able to provide the service.
Purchasing from a contract the Council already has in place which can accommodate
that additional need.
e.g. Tree maintenance services, cleaning contract, legal partnership
Direct engagement of a known supplier who is capable of meeting the Council’s needs
and provides value for money for the tax payer.
This route must NOT be used where a conflict of interests exists with the supplier or
where a competitive process is required.
Under PCR 2015 a contracting authority (such as a council) can directly award a
contract to another body (such as a local authority company) if all the following
conditions are met:
 The contracting authority exercises control over that body which is similar to the
control it exercises over its own departments.
 More than 80% of the activities of the controlled body are carried out performing
tasks entrusted to it by the controlling contracting authority
 There is no direct private capital participation in the controlled body
Under PCR 2015 Regulation 12(7) two or more contracting authorities can enter into a
shared service agreement if the following conditions are met:

Shared Service with
another public
authority

Soft market testing

Obtaining 3 Quotes
Auctions

 the contract establishes or implements a co-operation between the participating
contracting authorities with the aim of ensuring that public services they have to
perform are provided with a view to achieving objectives they have in common;
 the implementation of that co-operation must also be governed solely by
considerations relating to the public interest (which includes meaning that it should
not be a means to generate profits);
 and the participating contracting authorities perform on the open market less than
20% of the activities concerned by the co-operation.
Pre-tender research into suppliers and their prices. E.g. web searches, phoning
suppliers, peer recommendations. It includes testing commercial market capabilities of
meeting a set of requirements such as identifying whether there are enough interested
suppliers to maintain competitive pressures.
May be used following soft market testing exercise whereby suitably qualified and
capable suppliers may provide a quotation direct to the service.
Procurement through auctions is only permissible in exceptional circumstances. In
these cases, the Council’s policy and procedures for auctions as set out in Financial
Regulations Support Document 5 must be followed.

Page | 21
Version 1

Page 109

Tender Options – Non-OJEU only
Framework Agreement
– direct call off from
existing
Framework Agreement
– mini competition
eRequest for Quote

Closed Tender

Direct award from a pre-existing framework in accordance with the process for doing
so set out in that framework. The framework’s terms and conditions will apply to each
such call-off.
A closed competition between the suppliers on a framework conducted in accordance
with the process outlined in that framework.
Opportunity advertised on the South-East Business Portal and managed
independently by the Procurement Team. Lightweight tender and usually of a lower
contract value.
This is the process when selected organisations are invited to submit a tender
following soft market testing, or using the knowledge of the sourcing officer of the
suppliers available in the market. This route to market must be approved by the
Procurement Team and is not available for procurements under PCR 2015.

Tender Options – Any
Occasional Joint
Procurement
Open Procedure Tender
Competitive procedure
with Negotiation
Competitive Dialogue
Innovation Partnership
Dynamic Purchasing
System (DPS)

For example, HIOWPP (Hampshire & Isle of Wight Purchasing Partnership)
frameworks available to all members.
One stage regime. Generally used if the purchase is for something which is readily
available from a range of suppliers and whose characteristics are simple to evaluate or
where there is a very limited number of potential suppliers.
A multi-stage procurement procedure for more complicated needs involving a gradual
reduction of participating bidders and interactive sessions with participating bidders
to help shape their final proposals.
A procedure which is very similar to the Competitive Procedure with Negotiation but
without flexibility to potentially accept an initial bid submission.
A relatively new type of procurement procedure involving multiple stages and geared
towards developing an ongoing relationship to develop innovative solutions.
For commonly used purchases and open to any economic operator who satisfies the
selection criteria to join at any time. Involves a lot of supplier management as each
advertised need requires a full submission which needs evaluation.

Tender Options (OJEU Only)
Restricted Tender –
Goods and Services
Restricted Tender Works

Two stage pre-qualification and tender regime.
The restricted process for Goods and Services must only be used for over OJEU
threshold tenders.
Two stage pre-qualification and tender regime.
For works contracts above the services and goods threshold, you can use a prequalification stage. Otherwise the restricted process for Works must only be used for
over OJEU thresholds.

Page | 22
Version 1

Page 110

APPENDIX D

Guide to Determine the
Appropriate Type of Legal Agreement

Decision 1 - Document Type
Nature of the Purchase

Goods
not using a framework
agreement

Services
not using a framework
agreement

Examples of Options


Purchase Order standard terms & conditions –
typically used for lower value arrangements



Supply of Goods Agreement (valued below
£100,000)



Standard Supply of Goods Agreement (valued
above £100,000)



Purchase Order standard terms & conditions –
typically used for lower value arrangements



Services Agreement (valued below £100,000)



Standard Services Agreement (valued above
£100,000)



Purchase Order standard terms & conditions
typically used for lower value arrangements



JCT Minor Works with associated Standard
schedule of amendments where the works are
technically straightforward and there is no design
input from the contractor (valued below £50,000)



JCT Minor Works with Design with associated
standard schedule of amendments where the works
are technically straightforward and there is some
design input from the contractor (valued below
£50,000)



JCT Design and Build with associated standard
schedule of amendments where the works are
designed by the contractor based upon outline
requirements provided by the Council



JCT Measured Term with associated standard
schedule of amendments where there is a regular
flow of maintenance and minor works (including
improvements) to be carried out by a single

Works
not using a framework
agreement

Page | 23
Version 1

Page 111

Nature of the Purchase

Examples of Options
contractor over a specified period of time under a
single contract where the work is to be instructed
from time to time (each instruction being an order)
and measured and valued on the basis of an
agreed schedule of rates.
Note: Where the nature of the works is more complicated
and /or of high value then more detailed JCT contract forms
should be used for example, JCT Intermediate Building
Contract or JCT Standard Building Contract (either with or
without some contractor design as appropriate).
Where the works involve the installation of a system then
the NEC3/NEC4 Engineering and Construction Contract or
the MF/1 General Conditions of Contract should be used.

Setting up your own
framework
Calling off from a third
party pre-existing
framework



Standard Framework Agreement – contains a pro
forma call-off agreement. This is a services-based
template being the most likely need.



Utilise the form of the call-off contained in the
framework



Where the framework does not contain a form of
call-off use the Standard Call-Off (tailored as
necessary)

Decision 2 - Contract or Deed
When there is a risk that there might be
no consideration (i.e. a unilateral
promise without giving something in
return)
AND / OR

When to use a Deed

When you want the period of potential
liability (applying to both parties) for
breach of contract to last for 12 years
rather than 6 years.
Works contracts should ordinarily be
made by deed.

Page | 24
Version 1

Page 112

APPENDIX E

EU Public Procurement Thresholds
Start date of Thresholds = 1 January 2018 (subject to revision on 1 January 2020)

Goods / Services

Greater than £181,302

Goods / Services – Social and Other Specific
Services subject to the Light Touch Regime.

Greater than £615,278

Works

Greater than £4,551,413

Concessions

Greater than £4,551,413

Page 113

